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Acknowledgement

Northern Peninsula Area Regional Council acknowledges Native Title Holders, Elders past and
present, and all members of the Communities we serve within the Northern Peninsula Area. We
recognise their continuing connection to land and sea and the strength of a cultural heritage and
belief system that spans past, present, and future generations.

Disclaimer: Torres Strait Islander and Aboriginal peoples should be aware that this publication
may contain images or names of people who have since passed away. Council respects the right
of families and communities to request the removal from subsequent publications of any image
or name that causes distress.
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Welcome to the report

Northern Peninsula Area Regional Council hereby present the annual report for the financial year
to 30 June 2022. Our Annual Report is an important component of Council’'s performance
management process. It informs the community on how the Council has performed throughout
the financial year and captures the achievements, hopes, aspirations, priorities, and goals of our
community.

The 2021-22 financial year was a challenging year for Council emerging from COVID-19 which
has continuously impacted on Council in different ways throughout the year.

The goal of this report is to

¢ Meet our legislative obligations under the Local Government Act 2009 and the Local
Government Regulation 2012.

¢ Communicate our vision, operational direction, and work to the communities we serve.

¢ Demonstrate our commitment to accountability and transparency.

¢ Promote the distinctiveness of our region domestically and internationally.

We hope this report helps you understand our operations. Your feedback is appreciated to help
us improve our reporting to be even better in the future. For further information and to provide
feedback, please contact Council at info@nparc.qgld.gov.au

As part of our environmental commitment to reducing waste we encourage you to download a
copy of this report at nparc.gld.gov.au. You can request a printed copy or provide feedback by
contacting Council on (07) 4090 4100 or by email to info@nparc.qld.gov.au.
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Strategic Direction

Our Vision

With respect and pride we will build a future for our children based on unity, equitable self-
governance, education and culture.

Our Mission

>

>

To provide unity and cohesion across the Northern Peninsula Area five communities,
and

To establish the unified NPA community as a single point of accountability, with
Government and service providers as enablers (not the implementers)

Our Goals

Community Ownership: A unified NPA, leaving a legacy of pride and respect,

Accountability: Trust, transparency and confidence in thought, word and

behaviour,

Community Engagement: Connecting and communicating with everyone, with mutual

respect,
Respect: For yourself, family, community and culture,
Working together: We encourage everyone to be creative and innovative.

Strategic Themes

>
>
>
>
>

Infrastructure Services
Community Wellbeing
Community Economics
Local Environment
Leadership

Strategic Corporate Outcomes

VVVYYVYY

Organisational Management and Corporate Governance
Fiscal Management

Infrastructure Lifestyle

Community Development

Environmental

Land Use Planning

Quiality Assurance
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The Year in Review
Corporate Services

Property and leasing

The Property and Leasing Unit continues to coordinate leasing and tenancy
management across commercial leases, land leases, community social housing and
staff accommodation. This also involves the provision of maintenance requirements for
existing council housing as well as Council controlled buildings.

Apudthama Ranger Operations

Council continues to manage the Ranger program in conjunction with support from the
Apudthama Land Trust. The areas that are patrolled by the Rangers covers
approximately 250,000 hectares including 300km of coastline.

Fencing was erected and repaired from Pajinka to Somerset again to provided safety
barriers to stop any drivers from attempting to gain access to the beach in their vehicles.
Fencing also provides protection for our native environment.

Rangers continue to undertake work activities on country such as checking roads for
fallen trees, checking fence lines, putting up signage to identify areas where camping is
not allowed, checking campgrounds, patrol for croc sightings, monthly biosecurity
activities, turtle monitoring and coastal surveillance collecting data on ghost nets, marine
debris on the beach and dugong/dolphin monitoring.

Rangers conducted the annual beach environmental cleanup at Jardine Beach and Crab
Island Beach during August and September. This vital project was necessary to facilitate
turtle nesting on those beaches. Rangers collected and removed a minefield of ghost
netting, floating logs and an assortment of marine debris, to provide a safer area for the
turtles to nest. Rangers took the waste to the local transfer station. Ghost netting and
logs were disposed of under controlled burning on the beach

Aged Care Services

NPARC continues to provide care services to support the manage the many aged
residents in the NPA.

The Council is looking to reinvigorate the service provided in 2021-22 after a number of
years of neglect.

Community Events

Despite the ongoing impact of Covid restrictions NPARC supported a range of
Community, Cultural and Sporting events throughout the year.

The number and size of these activities will continue to expand in the coming years.
The 2021 Annual Dan Ropeyarn Cup Rugby League Competition kicked off under a
typically sultry Bamaga sky at the pristine Yusia Ginau Memorial Field. The event held
over three days from October 29 to October 31, drew First Nations teams and
supporters from all over the NPA and Cape York Peninsula. Cheering crowds swelled to
approximately two to three thousand on each day of the competition. The event
organised by the Apudthama Injinoo Sporting Indigenous Corporation in collaboration
with Council, consisted of junior and senior men’s and women’s teams. NPARC Mayor,
Patricia Yusia, enthusiastically welcomed the participants, supporters, and visitors and
acknowledged the efforts of NPARC grounds personnel, and Skytrans, the major event
sponsor.
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¢ In collaboration with NPARC, Queensland Health provided a Covid-19 vaccination pop-
up clinic on the first day of the event. Some visitors took the opportunity to get
vaccinated and receive a free entry pass into the oval, shopping vouchers and a chance
to win a REX Airlines return flight from Bamaga to Cairns. After four preliminary daylight
rounds, quarter finals and semi-final matches, the Men’s Open Final took place under a
cool, flood-lit evening between Kulpiyam and Malu Kiwai. A bone-crunching, hard fought
match, played in the spirit of indigenous brotherhood saw Kulpiyarn overpower their
opposition 22 — 6 to earn the Grand Champions title and take home a whopping first
prize of $30,000. Malu Kiai were rewarded for their efforts with a $7,000 second prize

Economic Development and Tourism

¢ NPARC is keen to support investment in the Community which provides opportunities for
local employment and business development.

e The Council is looking to continue to expand its support of local business during 2021-
22.

Corporate Affairs

e Services provided by this team includes governance, information technology and
Records.

e The Council will continue to invest in suitable technology enhancements to its business
operations to provide access to efficient and effective services.

Human Resources

e Council undertook a reorganisation of its workforce and work practices to ensure that
community services are provided in an efficient and effective manner. Council will
continue to invest in developing a focused, skilled and dedicated workforce though the
implementation of a performance management framework that supports individual
development.

Finance

e Services include: External financial reporting management reporting, grant management,
accounts payable, debtors, receipting, banking and investment, procurement and
support, budget and payroll.

e Council continues to explore opportunities to improve the timeliness, efficiency and
quality of services in support of front-line service delivery.

o Asset management and investment in systems and staff training were key deliverables
for the team during 2021-22.

Operations
The NPARC Operations Department provides the following services:
Water Supply

e Trility and Council have continued to provide potable water in compliance with drinking
water guidelines to the five communities of the NPA.

e The asbestos trunk main replacement project has continued through 2021-22 and will
continue into 2022-23.

Northern Peninsula Area Regional Council Annual Report 2021-22 Page 7 of 42



e When a burst water-main on Sagaukaz Street, at the junction from Bamaga to Umagico
and Injinoo, disrupted the water supply to the Bamaga community, Trility and NPARC
immediately sprang into action to repair the damage to the road. This was no mean feat,
as workers laboured skilfully for several hours to breach the road surface, locate the
source of the leak and effect the repairs

Waste and Wastewater

e The new transfer station facility continues to be working well.

e Abandoned and unwanted cars continue to be collected and transported out of the NPA
for disposal.

o \Wastewater services have continued to maintain and operate the sewerage system
within the NPA.

Roads and Infrastructure

o Work continued on NDRRA road restoration works projects within the region based on
assessments of damage following declared natural disaster events. Council maintains a
good cooperative relationship with the Queensland Reconstruction Authority.

e Design works were completed for section of road south and north of the Jardine River
Ferry, utilising funds from the Capy York Regional Package Round 2.

¢ Works including sealing were completed to extend the original Injinoo to Umagico
bicycle path and further extension towards Bamaga. The bikeway provides a secure
pathway for Injinoo and Umagico residents to cycle or walk between the two
communities. Further plans to extend the bikeway to New Mapoon and Seisia are also
projected for the future.

e Construction of a new chemical and equipment storage shed at the Bamaga Pool began
was completed. The shed provides a safe and secure facility for storing essential pool
chemicals, and pool cleaning and maintenance equipment. This new shed form part of
the ongoing upgrades planned to improve the entire pool facility. Additional plans include
an upgrade to the pool water-pump shed, and refurbishing the male and female
changing rooms by installing new partitioning. The new partitions will provide greater
privacy for all our regular pool patrons and visitors. The community can look forward to
these ongoing current and future upgrades to increase safety, security, and the
operation of the Bamaga Pool facility for both patrons and staff.

Parks and Gardens

e Continued to provide assistance with funerals, maintaining parks and open spaces, litter
collection, repair existing fences and install new fences.

Housing and Building

e Construction was completed on the five new houses funded under the $2.35 million from
the Queensland Government for housing purposes for Indigenous councils.

¢ Council’s building team continued to provide maintenance services to both internal and
external customers.
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Animal Control

e Under the guidance of the Veterinary Team and the NPARC Animal Management crew,
an excellent start to the reduction in horse numbers and dog management took place in
September. The construction of three handling yards at Umagico, Bamaga and New
Mapoon, facilitated the ability to treat and brand several horses speedily and efficiently.
Over ninety dogs were treated for fleas, ticks, worms and mange, which resulted in the
immediate improvement in dog health. For community members, it means a pathway to
better health leading to a reduction in infectious diseases, such as rheumatic fever and
kidney related problems. This was an important step for NPARC to ensure control of the
horse and dog problem once that has been experienced.

Enterprises
Council operates the following services enterprises:
Injinoo Batching Plant
e Provides concrete for all building and civil projects being undertaken within the NPA.
Injinoo Services Station

¢ The Injinoo Services Station provides fuel supplies and basic grocery items for local
residents as well as tourists visiting the area.

Jardine River Ferry

¢ Planned maintenance was undertaken when the ferry service was closed during the low
use season.

Umagico Supermarket

e The Alau Supermarket continues to provide an essential service to not only the residents
of Umagico but the whole of the NPA. The supermarket is operated in conjunction with
ALPA from the Northern Territory who provides management and commercial expertise.

NPARC Stores

e The Stores is an integral component of Council’s operations providing materials and
supplies for all Council operations. It also provides sales to materials to private
contractor and community residents.

Bamaga Post Office

e An important community services providing mail collection and delivery, parcel collection
as well as banking services.
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Statutory Information
The following information provides the details required by the Local Government Act 2009
(LGA) and the Local Government Regulation 2012 (LGR).

Section 185 LGR — Councillor expenses reimbursement and facilities policy

Council did not pass a resolution to amend the Councillor expenses reimbursement and
facilities policy during the financial year.

Section 206(2) LGR — Non-current assets

This process is noted in Council’s Procurement Policy which was in place during the financial
year.
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Corporate Plan

Community Ownership:

Accountability:
Community Engagement:

Respect:

Working together:

A unified NPA, leaving a legacy of pride and respect,

Trust, transparency and confidence in thought, word and
behaviour,

Connecting and communicating with everyone, with mutual
respect,

For yourself, family, community and culture,

We encourage everyone to be creative and innovative.

The below framework outlines how the Annual Report contributes to Council’s wider integrated
planning and reporting framework.

Our planning framework

Progress towards our vision is coordinated and assessed through our integrated planning and
reporting framework. The framework consists of our Corporate Plan, our annual Operational
Plan, and our reporting requirements, which sit within and contribute to the wider planning

process.

Adopt the plan

Northern Peninsula Area Regional Council Annual Report 2021-22

Develop strategic p.nnﬂyo
Alignment to other plans

Review legislative and

industry changes

Community engagement

Corporate
Plan

Project planning and
collaboration with
stakeholders
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Organisational performance

Council develops key performance indicators as part of the annual
Operational Plan.

22 objectives were developed for delivery in our Operational Plan for the 2021/22 financial year.
These were all drafted based on the outcomes identified in our Corporate Plan. The objectives
are actionable targets that move us closer to our vision for Council and our communities.

The process of setting objectives is aligned with the budget process to ensure that each
objective has an appropriate budget and other relevant resources allocated to its delivery. Each
objective also has a delivery target to ensure performance can be measured.

Quarterly reports on the progress of these objectives are provided to Council to ensure
transparent performance updates.
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About our region

Northern Peninsula Area Regional Council local government area includes the communities of
Seisia, New Mapoon, Bamaga, Umagico, and Injinoo.

Size Population* Average Annual Average Daily
Rainfall Temperature
1,061.1 km2 2,781 1,838 23.5—-30.2 degree
Celsius

Bamaga — 1,186

Injinoo — 498

New Mapoon - 412

Seisia — 293

Umagico - 394

* based on the ABS 2021 Census data

Facilities

Seisia is the main seaport for the Northern Peninsula Area and Bamaga is the commercial and
administrative centre for government services. Community services in Bamaga include hospital,
police station, health centre, ambulance services, family resources centre, healing centre,
healthy lifestyle centre, home and community care, women’s shelter, crisis shelter, magistrates
court services, child safety services and support. The health centre provides primary health care
and general nursing services.

Community service facilities found in other communities include Indigenous Knowledge Centres
at Seisia, New Mapoon, and Injinoo and a health service in Injinoo.

NPARC has a strong and productive relationship with both the Queensland Government and the
Australian Government as well as industry, community, private sector, community and
traditional owner groups. In the context of traditional owner groups, the Apudthama Land Trust
is the representative body established to act as a custodian for the Injinoo land.

The Land Trust is committed to high quality natural resource management programs which lead
to self-sustaining Indigenous-owned enterprises.

Council is directly involved with a significant part of the local economy through providing
customary civic services, operating local enterprises, and administering government assistance
programs in support of the strategic themes of our region.

The area receives a significant influx of visitors and tourists during the dry season via road, air
and sea links which boosts the population by thousands of people and provide a huge economic
boost to the region.
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Map

Please insert
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Our divisions

Division 1 — Injinoo

Population; 498*

Division 2 - Umagico

Population: 394*

Division 3 - Bamaga

Population: 1,186*

Division 4 — New Mapoon

Population; 412*

Division 5 - Seisia

Population: 293*

* Data sourced from the 2021 census.
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Regional demographics

Council’s local government area is diverse in nature, history, culture and residents.

Male 48.6%

Female 51.4%

Median age 23

Indigenous 82.2%

Weekly household income $1,331
Weekly rent $120

Languages other than English 92%
Unemployed 14.0%

Employed 53.7%

* Data sourced from the 2021 census. Weekly household income and weekly rent amounts are given as the median.

Northern Peninsula Area Regional Council Annual Report 2021-22 Page 16 of 42



Services and locations
Possible listing of different services/features at each community

Bamaga (Head office)

180 Adidi Street
Bamaga QLD 4876
4090 4100 or 4090 4120

Injinoo

54 McDonnel Street
Injinoo QLD 4876
4048 6800

Umagico

6 Charlie Street
Umagico QLD 4876
4048 6900

New Mapoon

80 Brown Street
New Mapoon QLD 4876
4048 6600
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The role and functions of Council

There are three levels of government in Australia. Each carry out distinct and
important roles to provide Australians with the services they need. These
services may overlap in some areas.

Local government plays an important role in community governance. As a forum for local
decision-making, it helps deliver the Queensland Government priorities locally and regionally.

A local government or council provides a wide range of services and activities, and for our
Council this is even wider and more important than most.

Councils are part of the economic, social, and cultural development of the local government
area it represents and plays an important role in community governance by enforcing various
federal, state, and local laws for its communities.

The powers of local governments in Queensland are defined in the Local Government Act 2009
and the Local Government Regulation 2012.

The services Northern Peninsula Area Regional Council provides include the following:

. Maintenance and construction of local roads and infrastructure

. Provision of water and sewerage

. Provision of waste collection

o Provision of animal management

. Provision of planning services

. Management of local laws

. Provision of community facilities such as community halls and Indigenous Knowledge
Centres

. Provision of postal services

. Social housing management including repairs, maintenance, and newbuilds

Some of these services differ from your normal local government due to the nature of our
location. Often, we are the only organisation in the region able to provide these services.
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Role of Elected Members

Section 12 of the Local Government Act 2009 states that the role of elected members is to:

. represent the current and future interests of residents in the local government area,

. provide high-quality leadership to the region and Council,

. participate in Council meetings, policy development, and decisions making,

. ensure that the Council acts responsibly, achieves the goals set out in the Corporate Plan,
and adheres to all laws that apply to local governments.

The Mayor and Elected Members perform their roles by attending and participating in Council
meetings, engaging with residents, and participating in policy development and decision-making
processes. The Mayor has additional responsibilities to those listed above, which include
chairing Council meetings, leading and advising Council’s Chief Executive Officer, and
representing Council at ceremonial or civic functions.

Our local government area is the most northerly Council on mainland Australia located at the tip
of Cape York. Our region is relatively small and remote and consists of 5 divisions. Mayor and
Elected Members are elected democratically by the community to represent the current and
future interests of the entire local government area, with each division electing a Councillor and
the Mayor elected for the region. One Councillor is elected Deputy Mayor by their fellow
Councillors.

The Elected Council conduct monthly Ordinary Meetings to consider and decide on strategic
matters regarding Council’s local government area and operation. In addition to Ordinary
Meetings, Special Meetings are held when required to discuss and decide upon urgent strategic
matters.

Council is also the trustee for Deed of Grant in Trust land. As trustee, Council is responsible for
managing and protecting the land for its Traditional Owners. Separate meetings are held to deal
with matters relating to trust land and Council’s role as trustee.
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Our Councillors

Elected members of the 4th Northern Peninsula Area Regional Council took
their declaration of office in April 2020.

Councillor Gina Nona
Injinoo, Division 1

Councillor Robert Tamwoy ‘ Q‘

Umagico, Division 2
Councillor Kitty Gebadi — Deputy Mayor
< 5 Bamaga, Division 3

Councillor Mabelene Whap*

Mayor Patricia Yusia

Councillor Eric Cottis

New Mapoon, Division 4

Seisia, Division 5

Councillor Francis Elu

Seisia, Division 5

*Councillor Whap took her declaration of office in December 2021 following a byelection.
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Councillor meeting frequency, attendance and remuneration

Meeting type Number of
meetings
Ordinary meetings 11
Special meetings 0
Ordinary Remuneration | Superannuation | Expenses
contribution
Mayor Yusia 11 112,384.26 21,491.09 1,295.72
Cr Gebadi (Deputy 11
Mayor) 64,836.45 12,398.68 2,124.65
Cr Nona 11 53,994.27 10,670.40 542.40
Cr Tamwoy 7 47,982.03 26,381.75 285.65
Cr Cottis 10 52,491.21 10,520.09 196.20
Cr Elu 0 13,874.30 6,515.62 0
Cr Whap 6* 28,442.38 12,147.60 542.40

* Councillor Whap took her declaration of office in December 2021 following a byelection.

Facilities provided to Councillors:
Mayor — Vehicle, office space and fittings at Bamaga Deputy
Mayor — Office space and fittings at Bamaga

Councillors — Office space and fittings at office in each division
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Elected Member remuneration

The Local Government Remuneration Commission sets the remuneration
rates for Elected Members across Queensland each year. Northern Peninsula
Area Regional Council’s Elected Members are paid in accordance with the
levels set by the Commission.

Northern Peninsula Area Regional Council in the 2021/22 financial year were:
» Mayor $108,222

* Deputy Mayor $62,435

» Councillor $54,110

The remuneration for Councillors consists of two apportionments: the base rate and a meeting
fee.

In 2021/22 the annual base payment was $36,073.28 and the meeting fee was $1,503.06 per
calendar month (or fortnightly equivalent). The meeting fee is payable for attendance and
participation at scheduled meetings of the Council, subject to certification by the Mayor and/or
Chief Executive Officer.

In addition to remuneration, Councillors are entitled to the provision of facilities that enable them
to fulfil their duties and responsibilities. Provisions under this entitlement are set out in Council’s
Councillor Remuneration, Reimbursement and Facilities Provision Policy.

Elected Members are provided with an office in their respective division, a laptop, a mobile
phone for Council use, and meeting and administrative support as required. Councillors are also
provided travel and accommodation when travelling on Council business, including when
travelling to attend conferences, workshops, forums, and other relevant meetings. Councillors
are covered by Council’s insurance policies.
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Audit Committee
Audit Committee

Council has an Audit Committee, in accordance with the requirements of the Local Government
Act 2009 and Local Government Regulation 2012. Council’s Audit Committee meets quarterly to
monitor, review, and make recommendations for action or improvement to Council.

To maintain compliance with the legislative requirements, Council’s Audit Committee consists of
two Councillors and two external members.

The 2021/22 year the Audit Committee members were:

e Cr Caottis,
e Cr Tamwoy
e Shannon Gibbs (external member)

This year the Audit Committee focused on correcting errors from the 2020-21 financial year.

Internal audit

Council’s internal audit function provides independent and objective assurance of organisational
operations. It brings a systematic and disciplined approach to the evaluation and management
of our risk management controls and governance processes. The internal audit function works
collaboratively with Council’'s executive leadership team and management to recommend
improvements to systems, processes, work practices, compliance, and business effectiveness.
The internal audit function is outsourced to Altius.

The Internal Audit Plan sets out the objectives for the financial year. The Plan is reviewed
annually by Council’s executive leadership team and Audit Committee to ensure it continues to
align with organisational needs and our Corporate Risk Register.
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Councillor conduct matters

As per the requirements of the Local Government Act 2009, all Councillor
conduct matters raised during the 2021-22 financial year are documented and

reported.

Local Government Act 2009 Number | Details
Orders made by the chairperson to deal with unsuitable meeting conduct
(section 1501(2)) 0
Orders made by Council as disciplinary action against a councillor for
inappropriate conduct 0
(section 150AH(1))
Decisions, orders and recommendations made by the conduct tribunal
against a councillor for misconduct 0
(section 150AR(1))
Councillor conduct complaints referred by Council to the Office of the
Independent Assessor 0
(section 150P(2)(a))
Councillor conduct complaints referred by Council to the Crime and
Corruption Commission 0
(section 150P(3))
Notices given by Council to the Office of the Independent Assessor about
particular conduct that would otherwise be considered inappropriate
conduct or misconduct 5
(section 150R(2))
Notices given by Council to the Office of the Independent Assessor about
particular conduct amounting to misconduct 0
(section 150S(2)(a))
Decisions made by the Office of the Independent Assessor about
councillor conduct 0
(section 150W(1) (a), (b) and (e))
Referrals of councillor conduct matters from the Office of the
Independent Assessor to Council 0
(section 150AC(3)(a))
Information (obtained during an investigation of suspected inappropriate
conduct) given by Council to the Office of the Independent Assessor that
indicates a councillor may have engaged in misconduct 0
(section 150AF(4)(a))
Number of occasions where Council asked another entity to investigate
the suspected inappropriate conduct of a councillor 0
(chapter 5A, part 3, division 5)
Number of applications heard by the conduct tribunal about 0
the alleged misconduct of a councillor
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Administrative action complaints

Council is committed to dealing fairly with administrative action complaints.
The process is managed under Council’s Complaint Management Policy and
Procedure and Council’s Housing Complaint Management Policy.

An “administrative action” complaint is a complaint about action taken or failed to be taken by
Council (as defined in section 268 of the Local Government Act 2009). Council is committed to
dealing fairly with every administrative action complaint.

Council has a clear process in place for resolving administrative action complaints. The process
is managed under Council’'s Complaint Management Policy and Procedure.

The Chief Executive Officer reports to Council annually regarding complaint management. This
annual review identifies and analyses any complaint trends and significant issues, and any
recommendations for improvement, to ensure Council deals with complaints in line with best
practice.

Administrative action complaints under section 187 of the Local
Government Regulation 2012 (Qld) Number

The number of administrative action complaints made to the local government in
2021/22. 0

The number of administrative action complaints resolved by the local government
under the complaints management process in 2021/22. 0

The number of administrative action complaints not resolved by the local
government under the complaints management process in 2021/22. 0

The number of administrative action complaints made in previous years that were
not resolved by the local government in 2021/22. 0
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Compliance activities

Council’s compliance activities for the 2021/22 year in accordance with the legislative
requirements set out in the Local Government Act 2009 and Local Government Regulation
2012.

Compliance with section 23
Public Sector Ethics Act 1994

Council’'s commitment to Queensland’s public sector ethical principles and the local government
principles is reflected in our policies and procedures. Procedures and management practices
are drafted in line with the ethical principles, local government principles, and Council’s Code of
Conduct.

Council’'s Code of Conduct applies to all employees, Councillors, contractors, consultants, and
agents of Council and sets out expected rights, duties, and obligations of all who are subject to
it.

All employees appointed to positions with Council are educated about their rights, duties, and
obligations under the Code of Conduct via our induction program. The induction for new
employees includes training on the local government principles set out in section 4(2) of the
Local Government Act 2009 and the ethical principles set out in section 4(2) of the Public Sector
Ethics Act 1994. Council employees can also access the Code of Conduct on Council’s
corporate intranet.

Councillors have received ongoing training throughout the 2021/22 year on conduct matters in
response to legislative changes to the Councillor conduct regime.

Registers kept by Council Council’s registers provide a source of truth for various subject matters
and help ensure efficient, effective, and transparent governance processes. Council kept the
following registers during the 2021/22 year:

e Councillor Conduct Register

e Contract register

Special rates and charges
During the 2021/22 financial year, Council did not levy any special rates or charges.

Concessions for rates and charges
During the 2021/22 financial year, Council did not make any concessions for rates and charges.

Invitations to change tender

During the 2021/22 financial year, there was no invitation to change tender under section 228(8)
of the Local Government Regulation 2012.

Summary of investigation notices

During the 2021/22 financial year, Council did not receive any Queensland Productivity
Commission notices of investigation under section 49 of the Local Government Regulation 2012.
During the same period, Council did not receive any Queensland Productivity Commission
recommendations on any competitive neutrality complaints under section 52(3) of the Local
Government Regulation 2012.
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Beneficial enterprises

Council did not have any beneficial enterprises in the 2021/22 year.

Significant business activities

Council did not have any significant business activities in the 2021/22 year.

Business activities

Council operated the following enterprises during the year however none of these activities were
deemed “significant commercial business units” in terms of the Local Government Regulation.

The code of competitive conduct was not applied to any of these business activities.

¢ Jardine River Ferry

e |njinoo Service Station
¢ |njinoo Batching Plant
e Umagico Supermarket
¢ Bamaga Post Office

e Bamaga Stores

Overseas travel

During the 2021/22 financial year, no overseas travel was undertaken by Councillors or

employees of Council in an official capacity.

Senior management remuneration

Section 201 of the Local Government Act 2009 requires that a local government’s annual report
state the total remuneration packages payable to senior management. Council’'s Executive
Leadership Team consists of the Chief Executive Officer, Executive Manager Business
Enterprises, Executive Manager Operations, and Executive Manager Corporate Services. The
following table shows the senior management remuneration packages for the 12-month period
from 1 July 2021 to 30 June 2022. The remuneration levels shown are on a cash basis and
exclude non-monetary benefits, allowances, and superannuation.

Remuneration Package Band

Number of positions in band

$100,001 - $200,000

6*

$200,001 - $300,000

1*

*All were part of the year
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Particular resolutions

Section 185 of the Local Government Regulation 2012 requires Council to list
in this report any resolutions made under sections 206(2) and 250(1) of the
Local Government Regulation 2012.

Section 206(2)
No resolutions were made by Council under section 206(2) in the 2021/22 financial year.

No resolutions were made by Council under section 206(2) in the 2021/22 financial year.
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Procurement

Council procurement is governed by the Local Government Act 2009, the Local Government
Regulation 2012, and Council’s own Procurement and Ethical Sourcing Policy and associated
procedures.

As set out in section 104(3) of the Local Government Act 2009, Council employees must have
regard for the sound contracting principles, when conducting procurement activities. These
principles are:

1.

2
3.
4.
5

value for money;

open and effective competition;

the development of competitive local business and industry;
environmental protection;

ethical behaviour and fair dealing.

Council is required to publicly tender work that has an expected value of more than $200,000.
Council is not required to publicly tender work of more than $200,000 where there is an
exemption. Exemptions include the use of Localbuy, Council’s registers of pre-qualified
suppliers, and sole suppliers.

Major construction contracts awarded

Total contracts awarded over $200,000: 3

Contracts awarded to suppliers within Council’s local government area: 1

Contracts awarded to suppliers within Far North Queensland: 1

Contracts awarded to suppliers in other areas of Queensland: 1

Contracts awarded to interstate suppliers: 0
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Commitment to Human Rights

Council is committed to protecting and promoting human rights in all the work we do - from the
decisions we make to the services we provide.

The Human Rights Act 2019 protects human rights, including property rights, cultural rights and
freedom of expression. All people are afforded the same human rights regardless of
background, where we live, what we look like, what we think, or what we believe.

Human rights / privacy complaints

Council received no privacy / human rights complaint in the year to 30 June 2022.
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Financial overview

Council’s Financial Statements were not completed within the statutory timeframe set out in the

Local Government Act 2009 and the Local Government Regulation 2012 due to historical issues
needed to be rectified.

This section of the report provides the Community Financial Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 179 of the Local Government Regulation 2012. It provides a summary
of the Financial Statements to enable readers to easily evaluate Council’s financial performance

and position.
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The Community Financial Report For 2021-22 financial year

The purpose of the Community Financial Report is to provide residents and interested parties
with a better understanding of Council’s financial performance and position over the previous
financial year.

The financial information that is presented in the Community Financial Report is identical to
Council’s financial statements however it is presented in a simplified format so that members of
the community are able to gain insights into how the Council’s financial performance and
position measure up at the end of the financial year.

The Community Financial Report uses plain language and pictorial aids such as graphs and
tables to give readers an easy to follow summary of the financial statements for the past
financial year. In addition, this report includes key financial statistics and ratios that can also be
useful indicators of Council’s performance and position.

Financial Statements

The financial statements of Council are audited records of financial performance and position for
a financial year (12 months). There are four statements that comprise what is termed “the
financial statements”, the statements are:

« Statement of Comprehensive Income (sometimes called a Profit and Loss Statement)
+ Statement of Financial Position (sometimes called a Balance Sheet)
« Statement of Changes in Equity

» Statement of Cash Flows
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Statement of Comprehensive Income

A statement detailing the income and expenditure of Council. This statement shows what
Council has earned (Revenue) and what costs Council has incurred (Expenses) throughout the
year. This is presented on an ‘accrual’ basis, that is it records revenue when it is earned and
expenses when they are incurred, regardless of the timing of the receipts or payment of cash.

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR $
ENDED 30 JUNE 2022
Operating Revenue
Utility charges 2433516
Enterprise revenue 7617 530
Fees and charges 619 821
Grants, subsidies and contributions 15 958 954
Interest revenue 15 500
Sales revenue 7976 331
Rental revenue 836 706
Other revenue 3204 699
Total Operating Revenue 38 663 057
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR $
ENDED 30 JUNE 2022
Operating Expenses
Employee benefits 13 894 339
Materials and services 23 763 531
Depreciation and amortisation 10 525 362
Finance costs 423 242
Total Operating Expenses 48 606 474
| Operating Result (9 943 417) |
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR $
ENDED 30 JUNE 2022
Grants, subsidies and contributions 5591 709
Capital Income 280 290
Capital Result 5871999
NET RESULT $
Other comprehensive Income 13 102 796
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 9 031 378
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Sourcing our revenue: What it comprises
Key Council’s revenue sources include:

Utility Charges - these are the charges levied on properties within the region for the
provision of water, sewerage and garbage services. Council does not levy any rates on
properties within the NPA. Each year, as part of the budget process, Council decide the
utility charges to be levied in the financial year. The level of utility charges that are
charged is at the sole discretion of Council.

Fees and Charges - Council generates a level of income through the charging of fees
for services and some goods. The fees can vary from admission to an aquatic facility
through to the payment of a hall hire fee. A key function of Council is the administration
of a range of regulatory functions. These can vary from administering the development
application process through to animal registrations.

Grants, Subsidies and Contributions - Council receives capital and operational grants
and subsidies from federal and state governments which can be for general or specific
purposes (grants to fund certain projects).

Interest Revenue - revenue earned by Council on term deposits held with banks.
Sales Revenue — this is revenue earned through works completed on social housing
Enterprise Revenue — this is revenue earned through Council Enterprises

Other Revenue - is other miscellaneous forms of revenue.

Capital Income - asset transactions that must be recorded separate to other
comprehensive income - This is a non-cash income source.

Other Comprehensive Income - is predominately increases in the value of Council’s
infrastructure as a result of asset revaluations. This is a non-cash income source.

Where Council Makes Money

Other revenue Utility charges
8% 6%

Rental revenue
2%
Enterprise revenue
20%
Sales revenue
21%

\ Fees and charges

2%

Interest revenue
0%

Grants, subsidies and
contributions
41%
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Identifying our expenses:
What it comprises Key Council’'s expenditure sources include:

* Employee Expenses - These represent the total cost of staff employed in the delivery of

Council services. The costs are typically inclusive of items such as wages,

superannuation, employee leave entitlements, training and other employee related

expenses.

¢ Materials and Services - These are the operating costs incurred for the purchase of

materials or other services necessary to deliver Council services.

* Depreciation and Amortisation - Is recognised as a cost to Council and is measured as
on estimate in the consumption of Council’s asset base. This is a non-cash expense.

¢ Finance Costs - These are the costs mainly associated with banking fees.

Where Council Spends Money

Finance costs
1%

Depreciation and
amortisation
22%

Employee benefits
28%

Materials and services
49%
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Statement of Financial Position

A statement detailing the assets and liabilities of Council. The statement measures what Council
owns (Assets) and what Council owes (Liabilities). The difference between these two

components is the net wealth (Equity) of Council and our community.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AT 30 JUNE 2022 $
Assets

Cash Balance 12 452 017
Other Current Assets 4 207 739
Non-Current Assets 232 151 292
Total Assets 248 811 048
Liabilities

Current Liabilities 11 789 454
Non-current Liabilities 1 828 266
Total Liabilities 13617 720
NET COMMUNITY ASSETS 235 193 328
Community Equity

Retained Surplus 160 083 881
Asset Revaluation Surplus 75 109 447
TOTAL COMMUNITY EQUITY 235 193 328

Assets: What the community owns

e Assets - Can be current or non-current. Current assets are those that are readily
available to meet expenses and mainly include cash and amounts owed by customers.

Non-current assets include property, plant and equipment

The value of all assets Council owns totals $248.8 million as at 30 June 2022.

Liabilities: What the community owes

« Liabilities - Can be current or non-current. Liabilities mainly consist of amounts owing to
suppliers, amounts owing to employees for leave entitlement and future estimates to
rehabilitate landfill sites administered by Council. Current liabilities are those amounts
that are payable by Council within the next twelve months, and non-current liabilities are

payable beyond the twelve month horizon.
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Statement of Changes in Equity
A statement detailing the changes in equity of Council. This statement details the movement in
the net assets (Equity) of Council and shows the overall change in Council’s net wealth over the

year.
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 $
JUNE 2022
Balance as at 1 July 2021 226 161 950
Minus: Net Result (4071 418)
Add: Other Comprehensive Income 13 102 796
BALANCE AT 30 JUNE 2022 235 193 328

Community equity

Community Equity - Community equity (what the Council is worth) is measured as the
net of Council’s assets less liabilities. Council’s total community equity as at 30 June
2022 is $235 million. Community equity consists of an asset revaluation surplus and
retained surplus.

Breakdown of Community Equity

Asset Revaluation
Surplus
32%

Retained Surplus
68%
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Statement of Cash Flows

The statement of cash flows provides information on the cash inflows and outflows of Council,

classified by different types of cash flows activities.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022 $
Opening Cash Balance 11 255 465
Net cash flows from Operating Activities (3245 745)
Net cash flows from Investing Activities 4 442 297
Net cash flows from Financing Activities -
Net increase in cash held 1196 552
Cash at the end of financial year 12 452 017

Cash: what were the major inflows and outflows of cash?
There are three types of activities that have an impact on cash balances:

* Cash flows from operating activities includes cash coming into Council (inflows) and
cash going out of Council (outflows) from the day-to-day operations of Council.

e Cash flows from investing activities include outflows of cash when makings payments for
infrastructure works and the purchase of assets such as land, buildings, vehicles and
equipment. Cash inflows can occur from Council selling assets (for example, land, plant

and equipment)

e Cash flows from financing activities cash inflows of money Council borrows (loans) and

cash outflows when Council repays the loans.
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Responsible Financial Management
In a period of continued growth and expansion, responsible financial management is crucial for
Council to provide key services and strike the balance between meeting the needs of the
community today and providing a solid financial future for Northern Peninsula Area.

Measures of Financial Sustainability

This Community Financial Report includes three relevant measures of financial sustainability
used to demonstrate that the Council is operating in a prudent financial manner and ensuring
the Council’s long-term financial sustainability and viability.

2021-22 Actual

Target

Asset sustainability ratio

Demonstrates whether Council is renewing
infrastructure assets at the same rate that
it is wearing out its overall stock of assets.

22%

Greater than 90%

Demonstrates the extent to which
operating revenues cover operating
expenses only or are available for capital
purposes.

Net financial liabilities ratio -8% Not greater than
Demonstrates the extent to which the net 60%

financial liabilities of Council can be

serviced by its operating revenues.

Operating surplus ratio -26% Between 0% and

10%
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Financial snapshot

The financial snapshot table below compares key financial information at the end of the current

reporting period with the previous reporting period.

2021-22 $ 2020-21 $
Net utility charge revenue 2.4mil 2.6mil
Grant revenue 16.0mil 12.2mil
Total operating revenue 38.7mil 33.6mil
Operating expenses 48.6mil 43.8mil
Operating result -9.9mil -10.2mil
Net result 9.0mil -1.5mil
Total Assets 248.8mil 238.4mil
Total Liabilities 13.6mil 12.2mil
Total Equity 235.2mil 226.2mil
Cash on hand 12.5mil 11.3mil
Operating surplus ratio -26% -28%
Net financial liabilities ratio -8% -10%
Asset sustainability ratio 22% 61%

Further detailed information on Council’s financial performance and position can be obtained

from the financial statements.
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Queensland Treasury debt

Queensland Treasury Corporation is the State Government owned lending
agency that provides financing to most local government and state agencies
within Queensland for infrastructure projects.

Council did not undertake any new borrowings from the Queensland Treasury Corporation in
the 2021/22 financial year and at 30 June 2022 Council had no debt to Queensland Treasury
Corporation.
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Signed financials

Northern Peninsula Area Regional Council Annual Report 2021-22 Page 42 of 42



Northern Peninsula Area Regio‘nal Council

Financial Statements

for the year ended 30 June 2022

¥

[ _’ ’,rfr'_ “: -
N PENNSULA AREA REGION. Councl, B,




Northern Peninsula Area Regional Council

Financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2022

Table of conients

Statement of Comprehensive income

Statement of Financial Position

Statement of Changes [n Equity

Statement of Cash Flows

Netes to the financial statements

1 Information about these financial statements
2 Analysis of resuits by function

3 Revenue

4 Employee benefits

& Materials and services

6  Capital income (expenses)

7 Finance costs

8  Cash and cash equivalents

S  Recelvables

10 Inventory

11 Praperty, plant and equipment

12 Fair value meastirements

13 Confract balances

14  Leases

15 Payables

16  Provisions

17 Asset revaluation surplus

18  Contingent Habilities

1¢  Superannuation

20 Trustfunds

21 Reconciliation of net result for the year to net cash inflow (outifow) from aperating activities
22  Events after the reporting periad

23 Correction of errars

24 Transactions with related parties

26  Financial instruments and financial risk management
26 Commitments for expenditure

Management Cerlificate

Independant Auditor's Report (General Purpose Financial Statemants)

Current Year Financial Sustainability Statement (audited)

Certificate of Accuracy (Current Year Financial Sustainability Statement)
Indepandent Auditar's Report {Cument Year Financial Sustainability Statement)
Long Term Financial Sustainability Statement {unauditad)

Cenrtificate of Accuracy (Long Term Financial Sustainability Statement)

Page



Northern Peninsula Area Regional Council
Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 30 June 2022

Restated*
2022 2021
Note $ $
income
Revenue
Recurrent revenue
Service charges 3(a) 2,433,516 2,588,930
Enterprise revenue 3(e) 7,817,530 8,326,860
Fees and charges 3(b) 619,821 472,924
[nterest received 15,500 28,889
Other revenus 3(f) 3,204,699 1,135,332
Rentai income 3(c) 836,706 935,496
Sales revenue 3(d) 7.976,33¢ 7,887,147
Grants, subsidies, contributions and donations 3{g)(i) 15,958,954 12,244,155
Total recurrent revenue 38,663,057 33,627,734
Capital revenue
Grants, subsidies, contributions and donations 3(g)(ii) 5,591,708 8,594,356
Capital income & 280,290 -
Total capital revenue 5,871,999 8,594,356
Total income 44,535,056 42,222,080
Expenses
Recurrent expenses
Employee benefits 4 (13,894,339) (12,645,859)
Materiats and services 5 (23,763,531) (20,760,008}
Finance costs 7 (423,242) 82,075
Depreciation and amortisation
Praperty plant and equipment 11 {10,625,362) (10,489,752)
{48,606,474) (43,813,544)
Total expenses (48,606,474} (43,813,544)
Net result {4,071,418) (1,691,454)
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to net result
Increase / (decrease) in asset revaluation surplus 17 13,102,786 -
Total other comprehensive income for the year 13,102,786 -
Total comprehansive Income for the year 9,031,378 (1,591,454)

The above slalement shouwld be read in confunclion with the accompanying nates and Significant Accounting Policies,

* Council has made a retrospective restatement as a consedquence of multiple comections of errors in accordancs with AASB 108
and therefore, in accordance with AASE 101 has restated the comparative figures as set out in Note 23.




Northern Peninsula Area Regional Council
Statement of Financial Position
as at 30 June 2022

Restated*
2022 2021
Note $ $

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 8 12,452,017 11,255,465
Receivables 9 2,507,975 1,444,709
Inventories 10 995,436 1,154,258
Contract assets 13 155,082 1,165,719
Lease receivable 14 548,346 524,257

16,659,756 156,534,408
Total current assets 16,859,756 16,534,408
Mon-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 11 214,729,620 207,507,250
Lease receivabie 14 17,421,672 15,367,280
Total non-current assets 232,151,292 222,874,530
Total assets 248,811,048 238,408,938
Current liabilities
Payables 15 3,095,719 3,252,722
Contract liabilities 13 7.463,480 5,534,848
Provisions 18 1,230,255 1,414,318
Total current liabilities 11,789,454 10,201,888
Non-current {iabilities
Provisions 16 1,828,268 2,045,100
Total nan-current liabilities 1,828,266 2,045,100
Total labilities 13,617,720 12,246,988
Net community assets 235,193,328 226,161,950
Community equity
Asset revaluation surplus 17 75,109,447 62,006,651
Retained surplus 160,083,881 164,155,299
Tofal communify equity 235,193,328 226,161,950

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes and Significant Accounting Policies.

* Gouncil has made a retrospective restatement as a consequence of multiple corrections of errors in accordance with AASB
108 and therefore, in accordance with AASB 161 has restated the comparative figures as set out in Note 23.




Northern Peninsula Area Regional Council
Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 30 June 2022

Note Asset revaluation Retained Surplus* Total
surplus
$ $ $

Balance as at 1 July 20621 62,006,651 164,155,299 226,161,850
Net resut - (4,671,418) (4,0671,418)
Other comprehensive income for the year

Increase ! {decrease) in asset revaluation surpius 57 43,102,796 - 13,162,796
Total comprehensive income for the year 13,102,796 (4,071,418) 9,031,378
Balance as at 30 June 2022 75,109,447 160,083,881 235,193,328
Balance as at 1 July 2020 52,006,651 165,224,050 227,230,701
Effect of correction of error - $22,703 522703
Restated balance 62,006,651 165,746,753 227,753,404
Net result - (1,591,4b4) (1,591,454)
Balance as at 30 June 2021 62,006,651 164,155,299 226,164,950

The above sfatement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying noles and Summary of Significant Accounting Palicies.

* Council has made a refrospecfive restatemsnt as a consequence of multiple corrections of errors in accardance with AASB 108 and
therefore, in accordance with AASB 101 has resfaled the comparalive figuras as set oul in Note 23.




Northern Peninsula Area Regional Council

Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 3¢ June 2022

Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts from customers

Payments ta suppliers and employees

interast recelved
Rental income
Non capital grants and contributions

Net cash inflow [cutflow} from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Payments for property, plant and equipment
Finance lease receipts

Grants, subsidies, coniributions and donations

Net cash inflow (outflow} from Investing activities

Net increase {decrease) in cash and cash equivalent hefd

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the financial year

Restated*
Note 2022 2021
$ $
18,192,876 21,658,450
(38,249,781) (32,298,478}
{20,056,805) (10,640,028)
18,500 29,889
836,706 935,496
3(g) 15,958,954 12,241,155
21 (3,245,745} 2,566,512
11 (4,417,780) (7,476,299)
14 517,274 503,065
3(g} 8,342,813 5,082,890
4,442,297 (1,880,354)
1,198,552 686,158
11,255,465 10,569,307
8 12,452,017 11,255,465

The above slatement should be read in conjunclion with the accompanying notes and Surmmary of Significant Accounting Poficies.

* Council has made a retrospective resfalement as a consequence of mulliple corrections of errors in accordance with AASB 108 and
therefore, in accordance wilt AASB 101 has restated the comparative figures as sef out in Note 23.




Northern Peninsula Area Regional Council
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2022

1.4

1.B

1.C

1.D

informatioln about these financial statements
Basis of preparation
]

Northem Peninsula Area Regicnal Council is constituted under the Queensland Local Government Act 2008 and is domiciled in
Australia.

These general purpose financial stalements are for the period 1 July 2021 to 3¢ June 2022 and have been prepared in
compliance with the requirements of the Local Government Acf 2009 and the Local Govemment Regulation 2012,

These financial staterments comply with Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued by the Australian Accounting
Standards Board (AASB). Council is a not-for-profit entity for financial reporting purposes and these financial statements comply
with Austrafian Accounting Standards and Interpretations as applicable to not-for-profit entities.

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for certain curent and non-current
assets which are measured at fair value and inventery which is measured at the lower of cost and realisable value.

Date of authorisation

The financial statements were authorised for issue on the date they were submitted to the Auditor-General for final signature. This
is the date the management certificate is signed.

New and revised Accounting Standards adopted during the year.

Northem Peninsuta Area Regional Councit adopted all standards which became mandatorily effective for annual reporling periods
beginning o 1 July 2021, none of the standards had a material impact on reported position, performance and cash flows,

Standards issued by the AASB not yet effective

The AASB has issued Australian Accounting Standards and Inferpretations which are not effective at 30 June 2022, These
standards have nat been adopted by the Council and will be inciuded in the financial statements on their effective date. Where the
standard is expected to have a significant impact for the Council then further information has been provided in this note.

The foltowing list identifies the new Australian Accounting Standards that were issued but not yet effective at the time of preparing
these financial statements that could be applicable to the Council,

Effactive for NFP
annual report
periods
beginning on or
after:

AASB 2020-1 Amendmenls to Australian Accounting Standards - Classification of Liabilifies as Current or 1 January 2022
Non-Current and associated standards (amended by AASB 2020-6)

AASE 2020-3 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Annual Improvements 2018-2020 and Other 1 January 2022
Amenagmenis

AASB 2021-2 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Diselosure of Accounting Palicies and 1 January 2023
Definition of Accounling Estimates (amended by AASB 2021-8) .




Northern Peninsula Area Regional Council
Notes fo the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2022

1.E

1.F

1.H

1.0

Estimates and judgements

In the application of the Council's accounting policies, management is required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about carrying values of assets and liabiiities that are nat readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based an historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant, Actual results may differ from
these sstimates. The estimates and ongoing assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and in future periods as relevant.

Judgements, estimates and assumptions that have a potential significant effect are outlined in the following financial statement
notes:

Revenue racognition - Note 3

Impairment of receivables - Note §

Valuation and depreciation of property, plant and equipment - Notes 11 and 12
impairment of property, plant and equipment - Note 11

Valuation of leases - Nate 14

Provisions - Note 18

Contingent liabilities - Note 18

Rounding and comparatives

The Ceuncil uses the Australian doflar as its funcional currency and its presentation currency and rounds to the nearest doflar,

Comparative information is generally restated for reclassifications, errors and changes in accounting policies unless permitted
otherwise by transition rufes in a new Accounting Standard. Comparative information is prepared on the same basis as prior year.

Financial assets and firancial liabilities

Council recognises a financial asset or a financiat fiability in #ts Statement of Financial Positton when, and enly when, Council
becomes a party to the contractuat provisions of the instrument,

Coungcil has categorised and measured the financial assets and financial liahilities held at balance date as follows:

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 8)

Receivables - measured at amertised cost {Note 9)

Lease receivables (other financial assets) - measured at fair value (Note 14)

Einancial lizbilifies

Payables - measured at amortised cost (Note 15)

Financiat assets and financial liabilities are presented separately from each other and offsetting has not been applied.

Taxation

Incame of local authorifies and public authorities is exempt from Cemmonwealth taxation except for Fringe Benafits Tax and
Goods and Services Tax {GST"), The net amount of GST recoverable from the ATO or payable to the ATQ is shown as an asset
or liability respectively.

Divestment of business activities

During the amalgamation process in 2008, the then Minister for Local Government stated that viable enterprises exxstmg at the
fime of amalgamation, should be returned to the Communities that created them.

At the time the Northern Peninsula Area Regional Council supported those views and subseguently it was agreed that a number of
business operafions would be divested from the Council to the Seisia Community Torres Strait Islander Corpaoration (SCTSIC),
commonly known as Seisia Enterprises.

The Council, pursuant to an Enterprise Divestment Agreement dated 10 June 2011, transferrad the management, ownership and
rasponsibility of the Enterprise known as Tarzali Farm, together with land, impravements, and plant and equipment to SCTSIC for
consideration of $1. The transfer of Tarzalt Farm was effected as and from 1 July 2010.

Remaining Seisia Enterprizes, including property, plant and equipment required in the operations of those Enterprises, are
managed by the SCTSIC under an Enterprise Licence Agreement dated 10 June 2011, entered into between the Council and
SCTSIC and subject to payment of a monthly Foence fee of $10,450.86 which is interest free. Management of these Enterpsises
by SCTSIC commenced on 1 July 2010, at which ime current assets and liabilities including TSRA loans were assumed by
SCTSIC in accordance with the Enterprise Licence Agreement.
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Divestrnent of business activities {continued)

Divastment of the remaining Seisia Enterprises, property, plant and equipment has been suspended pending the outcome of court
proceedings relating to the original divestment licence agreemant canditions and legal basis for the transactions and Council
decisions and actions at the time of entering inta the Enterprise Licence Agreement, Recent negotiations have centred around
achieving the divestment cutcome and a Binding Terms Sheet has been entered into with that intention. The terms sheel provides
that the divestment will proceed along similar fines to that originally envisaged with some agreed changes including that rent will
now be payable for the leases once they are granted, Gouncil’s position in the ltigation is that divestment has not occurred and
the relevant plant and equipment and buildings are still the property of NFARC,

Itis noted that this is curently an active Court case, It is being managed by the Caurt and regular review dates are sel so that the
Court can keep track of how the setilement is proceeding.

As ai 30 June 2022, the refevant conditions contained under the Enterprise Licence Agreement have not been fulfiled and the
basis upon which the Council decisions were made at the time is curently being challenged. The Coundil is currently involved in
court proceedings to negate the divesiment licence agreament and to have the decisions relating to the divestiment and sale of the
amalgamatad Council assets by the previous Councll declared beyond one's fagal power or authority,

The matter is still ongeing as Treasury consent is required under the Statufory Bodies Financial Amangements Acf 1982 (QlId) to
give effect to the divestment of enterprises. This is currently being dealt with by the Council's legal representatives. The Goungil
does not expect a contingent lfability arising relating to this.

COVID-19

Councit's cperational activities for the year ended 30 June 2022 have been impacted by the COVID-18 pandemic.

The impact of Covid has been significant at an operational level as supply issues have continued to be challenging in relation to
the completion of certain capital projects. Council has also experienced a high level of absenteeism related to sick leave as a
resuit of Covid. The financial impact it is not considered to be material.

There have not been any other significant adverse operational or financial impacts as a result of the COVIB-19 pandemic to date
and it is confirmed that any known impacis have been reflected in the financial statements,
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2 Analysis of results by functlon
2,A Components of council functions
The activities relating to the Council's components reported in Nate 2.B are as follows :

Corporate governance

The abjective of corporate governance is for Councll to be open, accountable, transparent and deliver value for money
community cutcames. This function includes strategic and operational planning, risk management, legal and administrative
stipport. This department also manages the Human Resources and Workplace Health and Safety functien,

Finance and information

Finance and information provides professicenal finance and information services acress all of council. This function includes
budgat suppost, financiat accounting and ATO obligations. The goal of this function is to provide accurate, timely and
appropriate information to support sound decision making and meet statutery requirements.

Community services

The goal of community services is 1o ensure Northern Peninsula Area Regional Counci is a healthy, vibrant, contemparary
and connected cemmunity, Community services provides weli managed and maintained community facilities, and ensures
the effective delivery of cultural, health, welfare and recreational services.

This function includes:

Community Development

Arts Culture & Heritage faciliies and events
Sports & recreational facilities and events
Libraries & Indigenous Knowledge Centres
Aged and Home care facilities and services
Disaster Management

Operational services

This function incorporates the managament of the transport infrastructure ensuring the commusity is serviced by a high
quality and effective road network. Waste services protect and suppert our community and natural environment by
sustainably managing refuse collection and dispesal services, mosquito and other pest management programs. Watar and
sewserage services protects and supports the health of our community by sustainably managing water and sewerage
infrastructure. This function alse manages NDDRA disaster relief programs and the housing maintenance program for
Building Assets Services.

Education, employment and development

The goal of this function is to provide assistance and guidance to enable the comenunity to access educational, emplayment
and development opportunities o ensure the engoing sustainabifity of the local cammunity,

Enterprise operations
The function incorporates the operation of a local suparmarket, service statien, post office, concrete mixing plant and the
Jardine Ferry and Roadhouse.
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Northern Peninsula Area Regional Council
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2022

3

{a

{b

d

}

)

Revenue

Service charges
Service charges are recognised as revenue at the point in time when the Councll obtains control over the assets comprising these receipts which is the
heginning of the pericd to which they relate.

2022 2021
$ $
Water 1,578,252 1,689,474
Sewerage 451,066 468,930
Waste management 404,198 440,526
2,433,516 2,598,930

Fees and charges

Revenue arising from fees and charges is recognised at the point in time when the performance abligation is completed and the customer receives the
banefit of the goaods / services being provided.

The performance obligation relates to the specific services which are provided to the customers and generally the payment terms are within 30 days of
the provision of the service or in some cases, the customer is required to pay on arrival, for example caravan parks. There is no material obligation for
Cauncil in relation to refunds or returns,

Licences granted by Gouncit are all either short-term ar low value and all revenue from licences is recognised at the time that the licence is granted
rather than the term of the licence.

Airport landing fees 414,070 205,234
Other fees and charges 205,751 267,691
619,621 472,924

Rental income

Comrmunity housing 315,101 233,248
Other rental income 521,606 702,247
838,706 935,496

Rantal income is recognised as income at the peint in time when due and payable in accordance with the lease terms,

Sales Revenue
Rendering of services

BAS/Qbuild revenue 6,944,445 6,928,131
Contract and recoverabie works 3407 -
6,947,852 6,928,13%
Sale of goods
Airport fuel sales 378,550 371,778
Store sales 504,682 582,425
Other satas 145,247 4,814
1,028,479 959,016
Total sales and recoverable works revenue 7,976,331 7,887,147

Sale of goods revenue is recognised at the point in time that the customer obtains control of the goods, generally at delivery. Revenue from services is
recognised when the service is rendered.

Revenue from services is recognised when the service is rendered. The amount recegnised as revenue for contract and recoverable works during the
financial year is the amount receivable in respect of invoices issued during the period. The contract work carried out is not subject to retentions.

Revanue from contracts and recoverable works and Building Asset Services generally comprises a recoupment of material costs together with an
houry charge for use of equipment and employees. This revenue and the associated costs are recognised by reference ta the stage of complation of
the contract activity based on costs incurred at the reporting date. Revenue Is measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable in
relation fo that activity. Where consideration is received for the service in advance It is included in other kiabilities and is recognised as revenue in the
period when the service is perfarmed. There are no contracts in progress at the year end. The contract work cared aut is not subject to retentions.
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@

Revenue {Continued)

2022 2021
$ $

Enterprise revenue
Jardine Ferry and Roadhouse 1,566,010 1,016,440
Bamaga Post Office 382,057 387,153
injinoo Ready-mix 277,501 701,620
injinoo Service Station 1,193,190 1,305,389
iImagico Supermarket 4,204,772 4,836,208

7,617,530 3,326,860

Enterprise revenue censists of the sale of goods and services. Sale of gootds revenue is recognised at the point in tima that the customer obtains
contral of the goods, generally at delivery. Revenue from services is recognised when the service is renderad.

Othar revenue

Comimission 33,233 71,876

Gain on revaluation of finance feases 14 2,596,144 29,979

(ain on revaluation of landfill restoration 16 251,552 -

Insurance claim 298 515,464

Other income 323,474 518,014

3,204,639 1,135,332

Other income is recognised on an accrual basis when the Cauncil is entitted to it.

Grants, subsidies, confributions and donations

{i} Operating

General purpose grants 5,542,186 4,205,094

State government suhsidies and grants 2,439,000 5,791,458

Commaonwealth government subsidias and granis 7,742,478 1,138,756

Nen cash grants 6 235,290 1,107,847
15,958,954 12,241,185

Non cash grants inciude costs incurred on Umagica [andfill closure amounting to $205,121 {2021; $396,941) This is part of the funding for the new
waste facility from TSRA for the Tarres Strait Major Infastructure an Other Projects Trust Fund. Refer to Note 16.

{if} Capital

Caommanwealth government subsidies and grants 151,745 186,210
State govenment subsidies and grants 5,262,698 2,687,589
Non cash capital coniributions 16 177,266 5717 557

5,591,709 8,594 356

Capital revenue includes grants and subsidies received which are tied fo specific projects for the replacement or upgrade of existing non-current assets
andfor investment ins new assets, It also includes non-cash costiibutions which are usually infrastructure assets received via grant funding.

{ifi) Timing of revenue recognition for gramts, subsidies, contributions and donations

2022 2021
Revenue Revenue Revenue Revenue
recognised ata  recognised recognised ata recognised
point in time over time point in time over time
Nota $ $ $ 3
Grants and subsidies 3(g) 45,958,954 5,591,709 12,241,155 8,594,356
15,958,954 5,591,709 12,241,155 8,594,356

During the 2021-22 financial year, the Council recognised nan-cash operating revenue totalling $235,290 (2020-21: $1,107,847) the maintenance of the
Umagico landfilf and non-cash capital contributions totalling $177,266 (2020-21: $5,717,657) for the capital expenditures related to the waste disposat
site, sewarage and transfer siation,

Grant income under AASB 15
Where grant income arises from an agreement with enforceable performance obligations and terms and conditions which are sufficiently specific, then
the revenue is recognised when each performance obligation is satisfied.

The performance chiigations vary in each agreemeant but include avents, disability support services, etc. Payment terms vary depanding on the terms of
the grant with cash received upfrant for some grasts and on the achievement of certain payment milestones for others,

Each performance obligation is considered {o ensure that the revenue recognition reflects the transfer of contral and within grant agreements there may
be some performance obligations where control transfers at a point in time and cthers which have conlinuous transfer of controt over the life of the
contract, Where control is transferred aver time, generally the input methods being either costs or time incurred are deemed to be the most appropriate
methods to reflect the transfer of benefit,

Where contral is transferred over time, revenue is recognised using either costs or time incurred.
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3

Revenue {Continued)

Grant income under AASB 1058

Where Council receives an asset for significantly below fair value, the asset is recognised at fair value, related liability {or equity items) are recorded
and income then is recognised for any remaining asset vatue at the time that the assel is received,

Capital grants

Where Council receive funding urder an enforceable cantract to acguire or construct a specified item of property, plant and equipment which will be
under Council's confrol an compietion, revenue is recognised as and when the ahligation to construct or purchase is completed. For construction
projects, this is generally as the construction progresses in accordance with costs insurred,

Donations and contributions
Where assels are donated or purchased for significantly below fair value, the revenue is recognised when the asset is acquired and controlled by the

Caouncil.

Donrations and contribltions are generally recegnised on receipt of the asset since there are no enforceabls performance obligations.

Non-cash contributions with a value in excess of the Council's asset recognition threshobds, are recognised as revenue and as non-cureent assets. Non-
cash contributions below the thresholds are recorded as revenue and expanses.

Employee benefits
Emplayee benefit expenses are recorded when the service has been provided by the employee.

2022 2021
Note $ $

Total staff salares and wages 10,285,805 9,387,355
Councifors' remuneration 386,118 370,474
Annual, sick and long service jeave entitlements 1,643,536 1,501,989
Superanauation 19 1,348,653 1,127,626

13,662,113 12,387,444
Other employee related expenses 317,308 258,415

13,979,422 12,645,859
Less: Capitalised Salaries and Wages (85,083) -

13,804,339 12,645,859
Councillor remuneration represents salary, and other allowancas paid in respect of camying out thefr duties.
Tatal Council employees at the reporting date:

Number Number

Etected members 8 6
Administration and indoars staff 46 37
Depot and outdaors staff 121 119
Total full ime equivalent employees 173 162
Materials and services
Exhenses are recorded on an accruals basis as Ceuncil receives the goads or services,

2022 2021

$ $

Audit of annual financial statements by the Auditor-General of Queensland* 345413 136,265
Consultants and project management 1,792,052 2,327,556
Contractors and condract services 8,560,572 6,336,200
Electricity light and power 312,783 306,840
Insurances 1,083,466 1,046,897
Admin supplies and consumables 3,984,786 2,387,410
Repairs and Maintenance 632,987 710,907
Plant and vehicle operation and maintenance 133,117 1,380,705
Telecommunications 404,773 446,509

17,24¢,850 15,065,679

Total audit fees estimated by the Queensiand Audit Gffice relating to the 2021-22 financial statements are $397,000 (2021: §195,000), The expenses
shown in the table above are presented on an accruals basis, and therefore some expenses relating to the audit of the 2020-21 financial statements
were incurred during 2621-22 and are presented under that financial year.
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5  Materials and services {continued)

2022 2021
Note $ $

Enterprise expenditure
Jardine Ferry and Roadhcuse 311,242 181,948
Past Office 181,943 233717
Injinco Readymix 254,864 450,937
Injinoa Service Station 1,531,330 1,032,970
Umagice Supermarket 4,234,202 3,795,358

6,513,581 5,694,929

Total materials and services

8  Capital income (expenses)

Gain on disposal of community housing assets

23,763 631

___20.760,008

Fair value of the surrendered houses recognised 471,598 -
Less: Carrying value of housing assets transferred to beneficiaries under Land Holding Act Leases {LHA Leases; (191,308} -
280,290 “
7 Finance costs
Bank charges 52,146 101,834
lmpairment of receivables 9 371,006 {183,909)
423,242 {82,075)
8 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash at bank and on hand 8,982,794 7,801,968
Deposits at call 3,469,223 3,453,499

Balance per Statement of Financial Position f Cash Flows

YT

11285465

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of cash flows includes cash on hand, alt cash and cheques receipted but not banked at the year end,

deposits held at calt with financial institufions and bank overdrafts,

The Council may be exposed to credit risk through ils in its in Qu land Treasury Corporation {QFTC). The QTC Cash Fund is an asset

management porifolic that Invests with a wide range of high credit rated counterparties. Deposits with the QTC Cash Fund are capital guaranteed.
Other bank accounts are held with financial institutions, which are rated AA- based on rating agency Fitch Ratings, and whilst not capital guaranteed,
the fikelihood of a credit failure is assessed as remote. All investments are required to have a minimurn credit rating of *A-", therefore the likefihood of

the counterparty having capacity to mest its financial commitments is strang.

Cash and cash equivalents 12,452,017 11,255,465
l.ess: Extemally imposed restrictions on cash (i) {10,039,509) {7,704,084)
Unrestricted cash 2,412 508 3,551,381

Council's cash and cash equivalents are subject to @ number of external restrictions that Himit amounts available for discretionary ar future use. These

include:

(i} Externally imposed expenditure restrictions at the reporting date ralate to the following cash assets:

Urspent government grants and subsidies 10,039,509 7,704,084

Total unspent restricted cash 10,038,509 7,704,084

{ii) Internal allacations of eash at the reporting date:

Future capital works 1,767,669 7,704,084

Future recurrent expenditure 2,271,840 -

Total internally allocated cash 10,039,509 7,704,084

9 Recelvables

Current

Trade debtors 5,598,420 4,129,677

Less impairment (3,172,538) {2,801,442)

GST receivabie - 117,074

Prepayments 82,093 -
2,507,975 1,444,709
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Receivahles (continued)
Receivables are recagnised at the amounts due at the time of sale or service delivery i.e. the agreed purchase price / contract price. Setllement of
these amounts is required within 30 days from inveice date.

All known bad debts were written-off at 30 June, Subsequent recoveries of amounts previcusly wiitten off in the same period are recognised as finance
costs in the Statement of Comprehensive income, If an amount is recovered in a subsequent pericd itis recognised as revenue.

No interest is charged on debtors. There is no concentration of credit risk for rates and utility charges, fees and other debtors receivable.

Council assesses the credit risk before providing goods or services and applies normal business credit protection procedures to minimise the risk.
By the nature of the Council's operafians, there is a geographical concentration of risk in respect of receivables in the Gouncil’s area.

The Council dees not require collateral in respect of trade and other receivables,

The exposure ta oredit risk for receivables by type of counterparty was as follows:

2022 2021
$ 5
Sarvice Charges 1,724,732 1,629,937
State & Commonwealth Government 857,026 494,084
Other 3,016,661 2,005,046
Tatal 5,508,420 4,129,078
A summary of the Council's exposure to credit risk for frade receivables is as follows:
2022 2022 2021 2021
Not credit- Credit- Not credit- n .
X . . R B Credit-impaired
impaired Impaired impaired
$ $ $ §
Mot past due 1,342,328 8,024 484,700 -
Past due 31-60 days 238,041 38,874 41,668 -
Past due 61-9G days 45,608 103 65,158 -
More than 90 days 779,805 3,116,537 736,109 2,801,442
Total gross carrying amount 2,425,882 3172538 1,327 636 2,801,442
Loss allowance - (3,172,538) “ (2,801,442)
2,425,882 - 1,327 636 -
Movement in accumulated impairment losses (other debtors})
Opening balance at 1 July 2,801,442 2,885,352
Additional impairments recagnised 371,096 (183,910)
Closing Balance at 30 June 3,172,638 2,801,442

Refer to Nate 24 for further information about credit risk.

Expected credit loss assessment

The Councl reviews the expecled credit losses of trade and other receivables from individual customers. Receivables comprise relatively small number
balances which can be reviewed on a case by case basis to assess the expecled credit losses over the lifetime of the balance,

Inventories

Council depaot 480,005 514,693
Enterprise stock - Other 189,887 242,361
Other frading stocks 52,690 98,370
Enterprise Supermarket stock 272,854 298,833

995,436 1,164,258
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Northern Peninsula Area Regional Council
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2022

11

(a)

{b]

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
Recognition

Purchases of property, plant and equipment are recegnised as assets unless they are balow the asset recognition threshold or maintenance expenditure. items of
plant and equipment with a total value of less than $5,000, and infrastructure assets and buiidings with a total value of less than $10,000 are treated as an
expense in the year of acquisition. All other items of property, plant and equipment are capitalised.

Acquisition of assets
Acquisitions of assets are initially recorded at cost. Cost is determined as the fair value of the assels given as consideration plus costs incidental to the

acquisition, inctuding freight iy, architect's faes and engineering design fees and all other astablishment costs.

Propearty, plant and equipment received in the form of contributions, are recognised as assets and revenues at fair value by Council valuation where that valua
exceads the recognition thresholds for the respective asset class. Fair value is the price that would be received ta sell the asset in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurament date,

Capital and operating expenditure

Direct labotur and materiais and an appropriate proportion of overheads incurred in the acquisifion or construction of assets are treated as capital expenditure.
Assets under construction are not depreciated until they are completed and commissioned, at which time they are reciassified from wark in progress to the
appropriate property, plant and equipment class,

Routine operating maintenance, repair costs and minor renewals to maintain the operational capacity and useful life of the non-current asset is expensed as
incurred, while expenditure that relates to replacement of a majar compenent of an asset to maintain its service potential is capitalised.

Expenditure incurred in accordance with Natural Disaster Relief and Recovery Amangements on road assets is analysed to determine whether the expenditure is
capital in nature. The analysis of the expenditure requires Council engineers to review the nature and extent of expenditure on a given asset. For example,
expenditure that patches a road is generally maintsnance in nature, whereas a kerb ta kerb rebuild is treated as capital. Material expenditure that extends the
useful life or renews the service potential of the asset is capitalised,

Land under roads
Land under roads acquired before 30 June 2008 is recognised as a non-current asset where the Council holds the title or financiai lease over the asset. As land
where Council is located on s assigned to it under various Deeds of Grant in Trust {DOGIT), NPARC has no such land holdings.

Beed of Grant in Trust land
The Council is focated on land assigned to it under various Deeds of Grant in Trust (DOGIT) pursuant to Section 34| of the Land Act 1994. The land comprises an
area of approximately 101,824.46 heclares, as follows:

Injinoo - 80,158.20 hectares

Umagico - 5,228.40 hectares

Bamaga - 6,622.30 hectares

New Mapoaon - 9,557.60 hectares

Seisia -~ 256,96 hectares

Measurament

Property, ptant and equipment assets are initially recorded at cost. Subsequently, each class of property, plant and equipment is stated at cost or fair value lass,
where applicable, any accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss.

Cast is determined as the fair value of consideration plus costs incidental to the acquisition. Direct labous, materials and an apprepriate pertion of overheads
incurred in the acquisition or construction of assets are also included as capital costs.

Propery, ptant and equipment received in the form of confributions, for significantly fess than fair value or as offsets to infrastructure charges are recognised as
assets and revenie at fair vatue.

Capital work in progress
The cast of property, plant and equipment being constructed by the Council includes the cost of purchased services, materials, direct labour and an appropriate

proportion of [abour overheads
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Northern Peninsula Area Regional Council
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2022
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(e}

(d)

()

Property, plant and equipment {Continued)
Dapreciation
Assets are depreciated from the date of acquisition or when an asset is ready for use.

Depreciation, where applicable, is caiculated on a straight-line basis such that the cast of the asset less its residual value is recognised progressively over its
estimated useful life: to the Council. Management believe that the straight-line basis appropriately reflects the pattern of consumption of all Council assets,

Where assets have separately identifiable components that are subject to regular replacement, these components are assigned useful (ives distinct from the
assel to which they relate. Any expenditure that increases the originally assessed capacity or service potential of an asset s capitalised and the new depreciable
amount is depreciated over the remaining usefuf life of the asset to the Council.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual vatues of property, plant and equipment assets are reviewed at the end of each reparting period and
adjusted where necessary to reflect any changes in the pattem af consumpticn, physical wear and tear, technical or commercial absolescence, or management
infentions.

Key judgments and estimates:

Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of depreciable assets al each reporting date, basad on the expacted ufility of the assets. Uncertainties in
these estimates relate to technical obsalescence that may change the utifity of certain software and 1T equipment.

Straight line depreciation is used as that is consistent with the even consumption of service potential of thase assets over
their useful life to the Council,

Impafrment

Property, plant and equipment held at cost is assessed for indicaters of impairment annually, If an indicator of possihle impairment exists, the Gouncil determines
the assel's recoverable amount. Any amount hy which the asset's carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount is recorded as an impairment loss.,

Valuation

Key Judgments and estimates:
Some of the Council's assets and liabilities are measured at fair value for financial reporting purpeses.

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Council uses market-observable data to the extent it is available and ather inputs as necessary,

Buitdings and alf infrastruciure assets are measured on the revaluation basis, at fair value, in accordance with AASB 116 Properly, Plant & Equipmant and AASB
13 Fair Value Measurement. Other plant and equipment and work in progress are measured at cost.

The Council considers the carrying amount of its property, plant and equipment en an annuat basis compared to fair value and makes adjustment where these
are materially different, This is achieved by engaging independent, professionally qualified valuers to determine the fair value for each ciass of praperty, plant and
equipment assels at least once every five years, This process involves the valuer physically sighling a representative sample of Councit assets across all asset
classes and making their own assessments of the condition of the assets at the date of inspaction.

Non-current physical assets measured at fair value are revahied, where required, so that the carrying amotint of each class of asset does not materially differ from
its fair value at the reporiing date. This is achieved by engaging independent, professionally qualified valuers to determine the fair value for each class of
property, plant and equipment assels at least once every 3 years. This process invelves the valuer physically sighting a representative sample of Councf assets
across alf asset classes and making their own assassments of the condition of the assets at the date of inspection.

In the intervening years, management engage independent, profassionaliy qualified valtters to perform a "desktop” valuaftion. A desktop valuation involves
management providing upcated information %o the valuer regarding additions, deletions and changes in assumptions such as useful life, residuat value and
condition rating. The valuer then determines suitabe indices which are applied to each of these asset dasses,

Revaluation increases are recognised in the asset revatuation surplus unless they are reversing a previous decrease which was taken through the statement of
comprehensiva income, in that case the increase is taken to the statement of comprehensive income to the extent of the previaus decrease.

Revaluation decreases are recognised in the asset revaluation surplus, where there is a sufficient amount available in the asset revaluation surplus refating to
that asset class. Where there isn't sufficient amount available in the surplus, the decrease is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income,

Where the class of assel has previously decreased in value and this reduction was recognised as an expense, an increase in the value of the class is recognised
in the statement of comprehensive income.

On revaluation, accumulated depreciation is restated proportionately with the change in the carrying amount of the asset and any change in the estimate of
remaining useful life.

Details of valuers and methods of valuations are disclosed in Note 12,
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Fair vaiue measurements

MR

d fair valué

Falr values are classifiad i‘nlo three levels as fallows:

- Level { - falr value b‘ased an quoted prices (unadjusted) In aclive marksls for idenlical assals or llabililes

- Level 2 - Falr value based on Inputs that are directly or indlractiy observable, such as prices for simifar assets, for Lhe assat or liabifity

~ Lavel 3 - Fair value based on unobservable inputs for the asset and liahility

The falr values of the assels are

-

using

which

1he use of abservable data, where it is avatable, and minlmise the use of entity spacific

eslimates. If all slanificant inpuls required te fair value an assat are observable, the assel js indfudad in lavel 2, If one or more of 1he significant inputs is not based an ohservable
market data, lhe asset is included in Jeve] 3, This Js the case for Council infrastructure assels, which are of a speclalist nature for which there s na active markel far similar or
identical assels. These assels are valued using a camblnation of observable and unobsarvatla Inpuls.

Accordingly aff Council assets included in property, plant and equipment classes shown at fair value are categorised as level 3 {2021: 100% lavel 3). Thare wara no lransfers
betwaen categories during the year (2¢21: Nil). The Councif's policy is lo recognise frensfars in and oul of 1he fair value hierarchy levels as at the end of the reporting period.

{ii) Valuatien technlques used to dazive [air values for lavel 3 valuations

The Council's policy Is te recagnise transfars in and aul of the fair value hierarchy fevels as at the end of the reporting period.

Specific valuation techniques used to value Councll assets comprise:

Deparment personnel whe are engaged (n the establishment and
i of such roads. Cast Information usad by Natural
Disaster Refief and Racovery Amangements {'NDRRA") 1
dial worlks have bean sourced far assistance wilh lhe costing§
of roads. Raference was afso made %o recenl costs for

Asset class . Last " .
ndex applied (change in index
and falr vatue :alu:’::: pre} i Valuer engaged Key ] and esi {related data sources} ' racpupgnisefd thisgyua:]
flerarchy e valuation date
The gross curent values have been darived from reference to
cesl dala for recent prajecls and researched costing quides.
Reference assel replacemant costs forthe assets were compiled
by reference to actual costs incurred for some of the subject
assels and by refarenca fo similar assel improvemenls
d within the North Queensland Ragian, and also
by to detailad G Gost Data.
Buildings were assessed by analysing cost data which has been
clarivad fram i jion fram Rawdi ian C: i P
y e An increase of 10.37% - $7.53%
Handbaok, Costweb and the Australiar Bureau of Stalislics, buiiding asset has been adoptedf
according fo each assel component,
Assel Advance Consh ions in the have been fhe type and Lhe 9 PO
Valuers jsaze of the a;sel. construction materials used, fevel of finish, this is based on the ABS material (Al
inheren] altribules, and the locallon of ha asset, Cosis hava been; . ‘
Buiidi evel Cument indexed b ¢ for the fozation of fhe subject s bai Group) Index, Praducer Price Indices|
pidings fevel | lacement 30-Jun-i9  |ndexation far 30 [ocxed to account for the localion of ie sublect assels D8ING e oq.residential), ABS Wage Index,
3) away from (he major supply centras andior due 1o beingin a . L
cost (CRC) June 2022 - differant location to thal fer which ned cost data has been oo Archilect, Engiearing - and
Australis Assel ! erer:j (E’c; on o ha nr} l“:! r?s‘ifm fe toos dala ?5 Technical  Services Index, ABS
Advisory Greup} saurced. Li e;er;;es EISEA?C? ed will time “;rj( a ? o Enginearing Design and Consuflalion|
construction of athar similer improvements and date of Index, and Rawliasons Construcion
cornpilation of cost dala} in camparisan to valualion date have and AQIS dala,
also been accounted for. New building assets since the date of :
the valualion have been valued hy reference to aclual costs
incurred in astablishing such assals,
 The valuation as assessed is based on the consideration of assat
flife axpeciancy. The remahiing life of the asset has been
C ned by Inspacil {o data pravided, and by
raferenca to its general physical condition, design, and econamic
and functianal ulility. Obsolescence as weil as physical
of 1 has baen jdared,
The road infrastructure was calegorised inlo urban and raral
raads and then further sub-categorised lnto sealed and unsealed
roads. All road segmants ara camponentised inte formation,
pavement and seal (where app ). The Councit lhat
envlronn?enlall e:mrs sucrlll as soil h;p_?i!clagaaﬁa a.;-ldllopagraphy An Increase of 10.37% - 13.04% has
ase consistent across each segment. The Ceuncil also assumes 2l o donted for road, drainage and
segment is designed and censtructed to the same standard and N
! ) bridge natwork.
uses a consistant amaunt of fabaur and matérials.

These movement are based on
l(':urrtzi'n r:placamsnl_;:as! was ca:;ulalteslh; rsrersgca l(l> :s:;el analysis of producer prics iadices
inear and area specifications, estmated labour and materia impart indices, wage price index, local
inputs, sarvices costs, and avethead allocalions, I is assumad [govammenl and constuction lndicas,

Asset Advance - thal base saw materials can be sourced from the local quarries Q '
. cansultaion Witk focal contractors
Roads Valuers where possibla. All diresl cosls were alocatad to assets at and . (iocal i
Dra[nal o and Current slandard usage quanfities according fo recently completed similar factor) ;g well as any cumency)
Brid agNem.urk replacemanl 30-Jun-19  [{indexalion far 3¢  ]projecis. Where construction Is oulsourced, cost was based on ﬂucluah’cns over tha ralevant pariod.
(Ievegl 9 cosl {CRC) June 2022 - the average of camplated simitar projecls over the last fewyears., Also, te Valuer has analysed am‘,
Auslrafis Assel The road cosl has been eslablished from general recordad cost deve'lnped a number of ,
Advisory Group} dala and atso by way of consulialion with NPARC Operalions !

index factors, which include Civil,
Mechanieal, Flectrical and
Raliculation catagories, Each)
compasite index has been camblned|
with an  Englneering and Design
i Index, and spiit based]

construcifon works withTn the subject district or other remate
regions.

[n dafermining the lave! of accumulated depraciation, roads and
bridges were apportioned into significant compenents which
exhiblted different useful fives and based an that applicable and
observed far reads in the wel fropica area of Queensland.

an a nolionat telal project cos
breakdown.
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#air value measurements {Continued)

Asset class Last P
and fair valua appreach comprel Valaer engaged Key ptions and estimates (related data sources) |nde);:c?l:::e(:!::;;ge;:r;ndax
hierarchy pRreac valuation date 4 ¥
An increase of 7.44% - 15.35% has
Forinfrastructure and cansistent with raads, It s assumed that been adopted for infrastruclure asse
Assel Advance - envirnnrqenlal factors such as sail iype, climaie and mpag;raphy ing to each asset comp
Valvers are consistent across aach seqment and that a segment is
Current designed and conslrucled lo the same standard and uses a Thesa. movement are based on ABS
Infrastructure | 30-Jun-19 . ion for 30 consistant amound of labour and materals. Where such gssals  {Malerials {All Graups) index and the
{lavet 3) CD;‘ (CRC) June 2672 - are located underground, and physical inspaction is not possible, [Producer  Price  Jndaxes  {Non-
Ausiratic Assat lhe age, size, and type of canstruction material, logethar with Res\'t_:ienlial), .":ES \‘_Nage Index, ABS
Advisory Group) current and planned mainlenance records ara used {o determine Arch[ieci. Engme.enng and Technlcal)
1he falr value at reporling date, Construction estimates were Services and Engineering Design and|
determined on a similar basis to roads, Consuliation Indices and Rawdinsons
Construction and AIQS dala.
In all casas the assets were disaggregatad fo component level lo
ensure & relisble maasure of cost and servies capacity and
daleriorailon of eslimated remaining life, lLis assumed lhat An increase of 7.44% - 15.35% has
environmental faclors such as soil type, dimate and topography heen adapled ’ for m'ler and
are consistent across each segmenl and that a segment is . lc
dasfgnad and conslrucled te the same standard and uses & .
consistent amound of labour and malerials. Where assets are each assef compareri.
located d, and phystcal i ion is not possible, the These movemant are based on
8ge, size, and lypa of canstruction material, togetherwith cument Wsis of producer prica indices
and pfanned maintenance records ara used te defermine the fair Import indices, wage price index lacai
GRC Quaniity walus al reporting dale. Carstruction eslimates were determined govemment alnd construction iniia‘ces
lon a similar basis to road assats, " o bt
Surveyors with lacal
Water and Gument and  suppliers  {local  adjusimant
Sewerage replacemant 21-Mar-19 (Indexation for 30 [Assel Advance Valuers cosl models were derived from various factor), as well as any cumency
infrastruclure cos! (GRC June 2023 - sources including Asset Advance Valuers database, schadule ﬂumua;ians aver fite solavant period
assels (level 3) ¢ } Aunsfralis Assal rates for consiruction of assat or similar assets, bullding price Ao Ihe Valuer has anal s;; anci
Advisary Group) Index Iable§. recent centract arfd tender data and_Rav.lz‘nsun's ) devc;fuped numh:r of zcmpssite
rales ro_r_hm[dmlg and mni?;glﬁlr;ﬁ:l?rs I?ken mlur:;t;or:m in dex facters, which Include Civit
refaling to :25 area In which development lak‘es place {e.g. rurat xz;:;::?fi caii;::.z:' EZE:
areas would have fille arno fequ ks, wh o ! :
high density area would have large amounts of high quality ﬁ;"rpﬁ‘e ér;c;ai:e:?i:gbe?; dco r;?;;z
fosipalis, coad pavemsns and i that Management Index, and split based|
waould requira reinstalerment, and would also require raffic on @ nofional la'ta% praject cas
contof) and soil faclors such as lha lypes of soll or other surface b
. o Ny reakdown,
material (e.q. areas where soll is sandy ara difficult to excavale
and would raquire shoring whils areas where the soil Is generally
frae of rack would nol present any greal difficully for sxcavation).
Considerations in Lhe calculaticns have been tha type and the
size of the structure, censlruction materials used, level of finish,
fixiures installed wilhfn, and the localion of the asset. An increase of 15.35% - 17.52% has
been adopled for community housing
The gross cument values have been derived from reference la assets according 1o aach asse
cosl dala for recent projecls and costing guides Issued by the component.
AVZIS:;;:(;VE"CB - Auslralian_ Institule af Quantity Surveyors, Rawlinsan's Australian o .
Community Gument ‘Conslniction Handbaok. This is based on the ABS malanal» {All
housing (lavel |replacament 30-lun-19 (indexation for 3G Group) t.ndex, Praducar Prica Indices
3 cast (GRC)  Tune 7007 - As the sublect strectures are located in a regional area, (ﬂOl‘I-I’ESIdBI:l“an, ABS Wage index,|
 Ausirals Assat somewhat ramovad lrorm tha nearest provinclal ;ity of Caims, and JABS . Architact, . Engineering  and
Advisory Group) far removed frem Queensiand's capital city of Brisbane, a cosl Tec.hm::a! Services Index, ABS
Increase over and above thal applicable to the nearest provincial [Enginearing Design and C fi
<lty, or in relation to Brisbane Cost Indax, is necessary to account [lndex, and Rawfinsons Genstrucfion|
for lhe incraase in replacement cast due to Iransporiation of and AQIS data.
labour and malarials frorn the nearest supply centre and also lhe
cost of hausing speclalised Isbour and canlractors necassary for
the conslruclian wark,

{lil Changes in fair value measuremants using significant unobservable Inputs {level 3}

The changas in fevel 3 assats with recurring and non recurriag fair valve measuremants are delaflect in Note 12 {finence leases) and note 11 (praperty, plant and equipment),
There have been no transfers between Javel 1, 2 or 3 measuremants during the year.
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(a)
(b}

{e)

14

Contract balances

Contract assets reprasents the excess of costs incurred in relation to a contract with the customer or construction of an asset over the
amounts that Counclt has invoiced the customner or the grantor, Where Councit has invoiced the customer or the grantor amounts in excess of
what it has incurred in relation te a contract or in constructing an asset, this gives rise to a contract lability.

Where the amounts bilted to customers are based on the achievement of various milestones established in the contract, the amoeunts
recognised as revenue in a given period do not necessarily coincide with the amounts billed to or certified by the customer.

When a performance obligation is satisfied by transferring a promised good or service fo the custemer before the customer pays consideration
ar before payment is due, Council presents the work in progress as a contract asset, unless the rights to that amount of censideration are
unconditicnal, in which case Council recognises a receivable.

When an amount of cansideration: is received from a customer / fund provider prior to Council transferring a gosd or service to the customer,
Council presents the funds which exceed revenue recognised as a contract liability.

2022 2021
$ $

Contract assets 156,982 1,155,719
Contract liabilities
Funds received upfront to construct Council controlied assets 6,855,309 4,028,201
Deposits received in advance of services provided 607 171 1,608,647

7,463,480 5,534,848
Current contract liabilities 7,463,480 5,634,848

7,463,480 5,534,848

Revenue recognised that was included in the contract Hability balance at the beginning of the year

Funds to construct Council controfled assets 3,003,643 631,136

Nan-capital performance obligations - -
3,003,643 631,136

Significant changes in contract balances

Significant movements in contract assets and contract liabilities that have occurred during the year were due to the change in the timing of the
work, impairment of a contract asset and significant monies received in advance,

Leases

Councll as a lessee
Council has a lease in place over its office space. Council has applied the exception to lease accounting for leases of low-value assets and
shert-term leases.

Where Counci that an ag t contains a lease, a right of use asset and {ease liabitity is recognised on inception of the lease.
Council does not separate lease and non-lease components for any class of assets and has accounted for fease payments as a single
component.

The right-of-use asset is measured using the cost model where cost on iniffal recognition comprises: the lease lability, initiat direct costs,
prepaid lease payments, estimated cost of removal and restoration, less any lease incentives received, The right-of-use is depreciated over
the lease term on & straight-line basis and assessed for impairment in accordance with the impairment of asset accounting policy.

The lease liability is initially recognised at the present value of the remaining lease payments at the commencement of the lease. The discount
rate is the rata implicit in the lease, howaver, where this cannot ba readily detemmined the Gouncil's incremental borrowing rate for a similar
term with similar security is used.

Council believas that the right-of-use asset and the lease liability in relation to the existing lease are not material. Therefore no further
disclosure on depreclation charge and camying amount of right-of-use assets at the end of the reporting period is necessary. The same
principle applies to for the lease liability disclosure requirement.

Exception to lease accounting

Council has applied the excepiions ta lease accounting far both short-term leases {i.e. leases with a term of less than or equal to 12 months)
and {eases of low-value assets. Council recognises the payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight- line basis over
the lease term.
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14 Leases (continued)

Terms and conditions of leases

Council's lease contract in place with Lou-An {Qld) Pty Ltd for the lease on the Northem Peninsula Area Regional Councit Cairns office space,
which initially commenced on 10 December 2014 has expired on @ December 2020, Council is currently using the space on a month by month
basis-with a monthly rental fee of $2,500.

Liabilities not recognised - extension opfiens

Fer the office space [ease, Council excludes the extension aption as it is not yet certain whether it will exercise the aptien at this stage. At
each reporting date Council assesses whether it is reasonably certain that the extension options will be exercised based on current operations
and Council strategy.

Leases at significant below market value f Concessionary ieases
Counci has elected to measure the right of use asset arising from the concessionary leases at cost which is based on the associated lease

fiability at initial recognition.

Leases at significantly below market value - C ionary / peppercorn leases

Council is the lessea of a number of Deed of Grant in Trust leases, for which ne or litte lease payments are made. These have been identified
as peppercom leases which are currently not recognised in Gouneil's financial statements. Council does not intend to elect not to apply the fair
value measurement requirements fo these leases until such time as this requirement is mandated.

Council as a lessor

When Councit is a lessor, the lease is classified as either an operating or finance lease at inception date, based on whether substantially all of
the risks and rewards incidenial to awnership of the asset have heen transferred to the lessee. If the risks and rewards have been transferred
then the lease is dlassified as & finance lease, otherwise it is an operating fease.

If the lease contains lease and non-lease compenents the non-lease companents are zccounted far in accordance with AASB 15 Revenue
from Confracts with Cusfomers .

The lease income is recognised on & straight-line basis over the lease term.

Finance leases:
Leases of property under which the Council as lessar transfers substan€aily all the risks and benefits incidental to the ownership of the asset,
but rat the tegal ewnership, are classified as finance leases.

Council has ieased 558 dwellings (2020-21: 560 ) as lessor to the Queensland Government for 40 years. The average lease payment per
dwelling in the curzent year was $927 (2020-21: $312), These lease payments are required to be adjusted each year by the change in the
Consumer Price Index (All Groups) for Brisbane. As the gress lease payments are insufficient to cover the fair value (current replacement
cost) of the leased properties, there is no inferest rate implicit in the ieases and therefore no finance income will arise from the leases,
Consequently, the leases are recognised at the present value of the expected future lease payments receivable {fair value). Gains/{l.oss) an
revaluation of finance lease assets are recognised as capitat income (expense),

2022 2021
5 $
Current other financiat assets 548,346 524,257
Finance leases £48 346 524,257
Non-cumrent other financial assets 17,421,672 18,367,280
Finance leases 17,421,672 15,367,280
A reconciliation betwaen the gross investment in the lease and the fair value of [ease payments is as follows:
Gross minimum lease payments receivable:
Not fater than one year 548,346 524 257
Later than one year but not later than five years 2,193,384 2,078,172
Later than five years 14,164,663 13,920,649
) 16,906,393 16,522,978
Add; Estimated contingent rent 12,972,234 6,273,185
Less: Present value adjustment {11,808,608) {6,904,996)
Fair valus of lease payments 17,870,017 15,891,147

24




Northern Peninsula Area Regional Council
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2022

14 Leases (Continued)

202z 2621
$ $

The fair value of lease payments is receivable as follows:
Not later than ane year 548,346 524,257
Between one and two years 550,566 518,222
Betwaen twe and three years 552,795 516,904
Between three and four years 555,032 515,696
Between four and five years 557,279 514,270
Later than five years 15,206,000 13,301,904

17,970,017 15,891,147
Movements in finance leases were as fallows:
Opening batance 15,891,147 16,364,613
Less: Leass receipts . (5%7.274) {503,055)
{Loss)/Gain on revaluation 2,586,144 29,589
Clasing balance 17,870,017 15,881,147

The calcufation of fair value has included an estimate of average annual CPl Increases of 3.55% in the current year (2% in the prior year) and
a discount rate of 3.13% in the current year (2.26% in the prior year).

Finance leases are fo the Sifate of Queensland, represented by the Department of Housing and Public Works. The likelihood of this
counterparty not having capacity to meet its financial commitments is considered low.

Movements on revaluation of finance lease assets are recaognised as other income/expenses.
Operating leases:
Where Council retains the risks and rewards relating to a lease, they are classified as operating leases and relate to the lease of Council's

properties.

The assets ara included in the statement of financial position as properiy, plant and equipment, where the rental is incidental or the asset is
held to meet Council's service delivery objectives.

Rent from Council’s building assets is recognised as income on a pericdic straight line basis over the lease term.
Rental income (excluding variable lease payments not dependent on an index or rate) 836,706 935,496

There is nil uneamed finance income, unguaranteed residual values accruing ta the benefit of Council or accumulated allowance for
uncollectible minimum lease payments receivable recognised as income applicable to the leases.

Payables

Current

Creditors and accruals 2,871,638 3,252,723
GST payable 224,083 -

3.085,718 3,252,722

Trade creditors are recognised upon receipt of the goods or services ordered and are measured at the agreed purchase/contract price net of
applicable discotints other than contihgent discounts, Amounts owing are unsacured and ase generally settied on 30 day terms,

Salaries and wages
A liability for salaries and wages is recognised and measured as the amount unpaid at the reporting date at current pay rates in respact of
employees' servicas up to that date. This Hability represents an accrued expense and is reporied as a payable,

A liability for annual Jeave is recognised. Amounts expected fo be setlled within 12 months are calculated on cument wage and salary levels
and include related employee on-costs. Amounts not expected to be settied within 12 months are calculated on projected future wage and
safary levels and related employee on-costs, and are discounted to present values. This liability represents an accrued expense and is
reported as a payable.
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16  Provisions

2022 2021
3 $
Current
Annuai leave 597 439 555,785
Lorg service leave 569,752 590,348
Landfill restoration 63,064 268,185

1,230,255 1414318

Naon-current

Lang service [eave 198,365 163,647
t.andfilt restoration 1,629,901 1,881,453
1,828,268 2,045 100

Liabilities are recognisad for employee benefits such as annual and long service leave in respect of services provided by the employees up to
the reporting date. Short-term benefits which are expected to be wholly settled within 12 months are calculated on wage and salary levels
which are axpected to be paid and includes related employse on-costs. Amounts not expected fo be wholly setiled within 12 months are
calcutated on projected future wage and salary fevels and related employee on-costs, and are discounted to present values.

Liabilities are recognised for employes benefits such as wages and salaries, sick, annual and long service leave in respact of services
provided by the employees up to the reporting date, The liability fs caloulated using the present value of remuneratian rates that will be paid
when the liability is expected to be setiled and inciudes refated on-costs,

As Cauncil does not have an unconditional right to defer setilement of the annuaf leave beyond twelve months after the reporting date, annual
leave is classified as a current liability.

Long Service Leave

The pravision for long service feave represents the present value of the estimated future cash outfiows to be made in respect of services
provided by employees up to the reporting date. The [iability is calculated using current pay rates and projected future increases in those rates
and includes refated employee on-costs. The estimates are adjusted for the probability of the employee remaining in the Council's employment
or other associated employment which would result in the Council being required to meet the liability. Adjustments are then made to allow for
the proportion of the benefit eamned to date, and the result Is discounted ta present value. The provision is discounted using the
Commonwealth Bond yield rates published on the Depariment of State Development, Infrastructure, Local Govemnment and Planning website.

Where employees have met the prerequisite length of service and council does not have an uncanditional right to defer this liability beyond 12
months keng service leave Is classified as a current liability. Othenwise it is classified as non-current.

Landfik restoration

Opening balance 2,149,638 1,065,496
Initial recognition during the year - 1,496,806
Change in provision due to change in discount rate 3} (251,552) 15,724
Change in provision due to change in estimate of costs - {31,447)
Settlement during the year 3{g)ti) (205,121) (396,941)
Batance at end of financial year 1,692,965 2,149,638

Landfill restoration provision
A provisicn is made for the cost of rehabilitafion and future restoration costs where it is probable the Council will be liable, or requirad, to do
this when the use of the facilities is complete.

The pravision represents the present value of the anticipated future costs associated with the closure of landfll sites in accordance with
emvironmental licence conditions, The calculation of this provision requires assumptions such as application of environmental legisiation, site
closure dates, available technologies and engineering cost estimates. These uncertainties may result in future actual expenditure differing
from amounts currently pravided. Because of the long-term nature of the liability, the most significant uncertainty in estimating the provision is
the costs that will be incurred. The provision recognised for landfill sites is reviewed at least annually and updated based on the facts and
circumstances available at the time.

Umagico waste facility located between injinco and Umagico Road has now been closed and the pemmnit cancelled as the site is no langer in
use. The current landfilt site has no remaining usefut life, with closure in October 2020, However, it is nated that closure costs of $206,121
and $63,064 have been incurred post 30 June 2027 and 30 June 2022, respectively, therefore the provision has been calculated based on this
infermation, The future landfil maintenance costs including vegetation management, site security and fire management are estimated to be
$11,800 per year.
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17

Landfill restoration provisibn {continued)

During the 2020-21 financial year, Council was granted a permit for & new landfill at a site located approximately 6km from the community of
injinco, off Ferry Road. The total landfill closure costs have been estimated by an externat consultant at an amount of $800,000 which includes
a contingency amount of $40¢,00C, The expected useful life of the wasie disposal site has been assessed at 23 years and therefere the
dosure has been assumed to be 2044, As required in the environmental permit issued by DEHP, rehabilitation and past-closure care of the
tandfill must be undertaken for a period of 30 years or until the administering authority determines. The future landfiil maintenance costs
Including vegetation management, site security and fire management are estimated fo be $10,000 per year, based on advice also received
from an extemnal consultant. It has also been estimated that costs of $200,000 will be necessary at the end of the 30-year monitoring period,
The net present value of the rehabilitation costs as at 30 June 2021 which amounted to $1,496,806 should be capitalisad as part of the cost of
the new facility site.

Prior period adjusiments were dane ta reflect the correct landfilt asset and provisicn for the landfill as discussed in Nate 23.

As described in Nate 23, the funds for the new facility assets were held in trust and the new waste facility assets associated with the project
should have been transferred to Council on completion. The totaf cost of the new wasta facility, including the rehabilitation provision, as at 30
June 2022 amounted to $7,214 363, Included in this amount are the costs of sewerags upgrade treatment, waste facility and transfer station
totalling $5,717,557 which was recognised as capital revenue {non-cash grant) in the form of a donated asset in the year ended 30 June 2021,

Far the year ended 30 June 2022, tofal cost incurred for the waste facility asset amounted to $177,266, which was recognised as non-cash
capital grants. Additionally, $205,621 was spent on the Umagico kandfill closuse which was recognised as non-cash recurrent granis. See nate
3g.

Asset revaluation surplus

The asset revaluation sueplus comprises adjusiments relating to changes in value of property, plant and equiprment that do not result from the
use of those assels, Net incremental changes in the camying value of classes of nom-current assets since their inifial recegnition are
accumulated in the asset revaluation surplus. Increases and decreases on revaluation are offset within a class of assets.

Where a class of assets fs decreased on revaluation, that decrease Is offset first against the ameunt remaining in the asset revaiuation
stirplus In sespact of that class, Any axcess s treated as an expanse.

When an asset is disposed of, the amount reported in surplus in respect of that asset is retained in the assst revaiuation surplus and not
transferred o retained susplus.

2022 2021
Note $ $
Balance at beginning of financial year 82,008,651 62,008,65¢
Net adjustment to non-current assets at end of period to
reflect a change in current fair value:
Buildings 11 5,596,431 -
Plant & equipment " - -
Infrastructure 1 1,743,261 -
Sewerage 11 1,129,829 -
Roads & bridges 11 (3,235,202) -
Drainage 1 617,043 -
Community housing kA 1,922,823 -
\Water 1 5,028,621 -

Batance at end of financial year

Asset revatuation surplus analysis
The closing balance of the asset revaluation surplus
comprises the following asset categaries:

75,109,447 62,006,651

Buildings 34,374,288 28,777,868
Plant & equipment 1,573,847 1,573,847
Infrastructure 4,047,205 2,303,954
Sewerage 2,661,033 1,431,204
Roads & bridges 20,162,197 23,397,399
Drainage 2,505,076 1,588,033
Community Housing 3,742,330 1,819,507
Water 5,143,460 1,114,839

75,109,447 62,006,651
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18

20

Detaiis and estimates of maximum amaounts of contingent liabilities are as follows:

Local Government Mutual

The Council was a member of the local government mutual fiability self-insurance paol, LGM Queensland at 30 June 2022 for Public Liability,
Products Liability and Professional Indemnity cover. All other insurance policies were negotiated through Jardine, L!nyd Thompsoen. As at the
date of this report there were no centingent liabilities arising from insurance claims,

Local Governiment Workcare

Council is not a member of the Queensland local government worker's compensation self-insurance scheme, Local Governiment Workeare, All
workers compensation arrangements have been negotiated with Workcover Queensland. At the date of this report there were no centingent
ltabilities arising from workers compensation claims,

Loan guarantee

The Enterprise Licence Agreemant for the divestment of enterprises te Seisia Community Torres Strait Islander Corporation, includes a
provision which could require the Counci to make geod the repayment of loans to Torras Strait Regional Authority should the $icensee fail to
do so. This possible liability arises bacause the consent of the grantor was not obtained prior to the |oan [iability baing transferred to the
licensee, That consent had not been received as at the date of the signing of the licence. The possible liability is not recarded in the Financial
Statements of the Councll,

Superannuation

Gouncil contributes to the Brghter Super (previously know as L.GlAsuper). Brighter Super is 2 Multiemployer Plan as defined in Australian
Accounting Standard AASE 119 Employee Benefits, The scheme has a number of elements including defined benafits funds and an
accumulated benefits fund. Counsil dees not have any employees who are members of the defined benefits funds and so is not exposed to
the obligations, assets or costs assaciated with these funds. Council has employees who are members of the accumulated benefits fund.

2022 2024
Note $ $
Superannuation contributions made fo the Brighter Super Accumulated Benefits Fund 4 1,346,653 1,127,826
Trust funds

Funds hetd in the trust account on behalf of outside parties include those funds from deposits for the contracted sale of fand, security deposits
lodged to guarantee perfermance and unctaimed monies {e.g. wages) paid into the trust account by the Councll. The Council parforms only a
custodian role in respect of these monies and because the monies cannot be used for Council pusposes, they are not consideraed revenue nor
brought 1o acceunt in the financial statements.

Trust funds held for outside parties
Monies collected or held on behalf of other entities yet to be paid out to or on behalf of those entities 4,879 4,988
4,879 4,998

The Council perfarms only a custodial role in respect of these monias. As these funds cannol be used by the Council, they are nat brought to
account in these financial statements.

Funds held in trust by outside parties

Manies held in trust by DFK Kidsons. The Major Infrastructure Program is jeintly funded by the Australian
and Queensland Governments te deliver and upgrade major infrastructure works. DFK Kidsons holds
funds for muitiple Councils in regards to the Major Infrastructure Program. The amount disclosed above
relates to NFARC's portion of the funds. Infrastructure assets are nof recognised by the Gouncil until they

have reached completion. $37.715 1,953,393

137,718 1,953,323
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21 Reconciliation of net result for the year to net cash inflow {outflow) from operating activities

2022 2021
Note $ $
Net result . {4.071,418) {1,591,454)
Non-cash ftems:
Dapreciation and amortisatian 2| 106,525,362 10,489,752
PPE write-off and adjustments 230,410 82,085
LossKgaitt) on revatuation of finance leases 14 (2,596,144) (29,589)
Mavement in Impairmant of debts 9 371,096 {183,210)
Landfill restoration revaluation and inittal recognition 16 (251,552) 1,481,083
Non-cash grant on landfill restoration 16 (177,266) (5,717,557)
8,101,906 6,122,764
Investing and development aclivities:
Gain on disposal of assels (280,230) -
Capital grants and congsibutions {5,414,443) {2,876,799)
(5,694,733} (2,876,799)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
(Increase)/ decrease in receivables (1,433,872) 1,450,755
(Increase)/decrease in inventory 158,822 (101,661)
Increasef{decrease)} in payablas (167,005) (542,299)
Increasef{decrease} in other provisions (149,345) 105,206
(1,581,500) 912,001
Net cash inflow from operating activities 7 (3,245.745) 2,566,512

22 Events after the reporting period

The post office enterprise was divested to the third party after the 30 June 2022. The contract between Council and Austratia Post lapsed on 3
September 2022 with the divestment taking effect in October 2022,

A new Council was elected in March 2024 and taok sffect in April 2024,
Anew certified agreement for employee salaries and wages was approved on 21 February 2024 and that this resulted In backpay.

Ta the best of the Council's knowladge at the date of this financial report, there are no other post balance date events that are likely to have a
materiat impact on the financial statements.
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23 Correction of errors

a Overstatemant of property plant and equipmeant and understatement of expenditure/retained earnings

During the year ended 30 June 2021, Council signed a contract for the extension of 10 houses in the Northern Peninsuta Ares. These houses were
all under 40-year housing lease agreements and therefore not inciuded in the balance of property, plant and equipment as Council assets. 1t was
noted that project costs of $1,461,762 incurred during the 2020-2021 financial year were incorrectly recognised as waork in progress as at 30 June
2021 and then transferred to building assets as at 30 June 2022, Housing assets held under 40 year housing lease agreements are not assets of
the Council and therefore cosis incurred in 2021 should have been recognised in the income statement.

The impact of this error results in an overstatement of work in progress included in the balance of property, plant and equipment and an
understatement of expenditure in the 2020-2%, with an overstatement of the opening retained earnings as at 1 July 2021, The adjusimenis are
included in the summary helow,

b Understatement of revenue and understatement of contract balances
It has been identified that the balance for contract assets and liabilities had been incorrectly calculated for various grants during the 2019-2020 and
2020-21 financial years. The grants were noted to have anforceable contracts and specific performance obligaticns, and revenue was recognised
over time based on the costs incurred. n the revenue analysis for the years ended 30 June 2020 and 2021, it was identified that the project costs
for these grants had not been carrectly allocated to the grant projects with the closing balances remaining unchanged from the 2018-20 financial
year. Consequently, the misstatemant in the allocated project costs against these grants resulted to a misstaternent in retained earnings, revenue
and contract balances for the 2020-21 financial year,

The incorrect allocation of costs in prior years for the grants has resulted in ihe net understatement of revenue, retained surplus and contract
liabilities for the year ended 30 June 2021, The adjustments are included in the summary below.

¢ Misstatement of rehabilitation provision

The provision recognised as at 30 June 2020 related to the Council’s refuse in Umagico and that this site was in the process of being closed. The
site closure date was October 2020 with a new waste facility having been constructed and ready for use prior fo the closure of the old site.

The changes in circumstances around the landfilf sites were not taken into consideration for the 2020-21 financial year and the financial statements
for 30 June 2021 did not reflect the closure of the old site or the abligation to rehabilitate the new waste facility site, which had both occurred prior to
340 June 2024,

Umagico waste facility - old site

During the 2020-21 financial year, it was noted that there had been no movement recognised in the provision for the landfill old site, and the
changes in the landfill ciosure costs and maintenance information had not been considered. It is noted that the failure to update the provisien as at
30 June 2024 results in an overstatement of the provision of $412,664 for the old site.

Injinoo waste facility - new site

An Environmental Autherity from the Department of Environment and Heritage Protection was issued in June 2020 and a permit was granted for the
operation: of the new waste facility under EP0002318. This permit came into effect at the date at which the site commenced operations being
October 2020. Onee the permit came Iinto effect, the provision in the financial statements should have been recognised to reflect the obligation
Coungil had to rehabilitate the site at the end of use. The permit is considerad to be the ohligating event. It is noted that the failure to recognise the
provision as at 3¢ June 2021 results in an understatement of the provision of $1,496,806 for the new site,

The amount of the restoration provision should be recognised as part of the cost of the asset.
The adjustments are included in the summary below,

d Unracognised waste facility assets
The new waste facility was censtructed under funding from TSRA for the Terres Strait Major Infrastructure and Gther Projects Trust Fund. It is noted
that the landfill asset had not been recognised in the financial statements as at 30 June 2021 despite Council essentially optaining the risks and
rewards of the asset at the date at which the site commenced operation. As part of the Major infrastructure project, other assets were aiso
completed during the 2620-21 financial year a transfer station at the site of the ofd waste facllity and sewerage treatment pond upgrades which are
existing Gouncil assets and therefore it is considered that costs be capitalised as the work in performed.

The total costs of the waste facility of $4,254,767, transfer station of $491.020 and sewerage treatment ponds of $371,770 should have been
recognised as capital revenue in the form of a donated asset in the year in which the work is performed. [t is noted that recurrent expenditure of
$710,907 had also been incurred during the 2020-21 financial year via the project.

The adjustments are included in the summary below,
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23 Correction of errors (continued)

Comparative figures for 30 June 2020

Statement of financial position
Current assets

Caontract assets

Total current assets

Current liabilities
Contract liabilities
Total current liabilities

Community equity
Retained surplus
Total community equity

Comparative figures for 30 June 2021

Statement of comprehensive income

Income

Recurrent revenue

Interest received

Other income

Grants, subsidies, contributions and donations
Total recurrent revenue

Capital revenue

Grants, subsidies, contributions and donations
Total capital revenue

Total income
Expenses

Materials and services
Depreciation expense

Capital expenses

Total expenses
Net results

Original
balance as
presented at
30 June 2020

220,264

15,064,856

—

2,805,985

reTererr————— s

7

972,421

166,224,060

Prior period adjustments

Contract
assets and
liabifities {b)

460,000
460,000

{62,703)
(62,703)

522,703

Restated at 1
July 2020

680,254

15,524,856

2,843 292

—_— e

7,909,718

165,746,753

—227.230,701 222,003 221,753,404
Prior period adjustments
Original Capital Contract Landfill Restated at 30
balance as expenditure  assets and provision June 2021
presented at (a) liabilities {b) {c&d)
30 June 2021
1,119,608 15,724 1,135,332
11,133,308 1,107,848 12,241,156
32,504,163 1,123,572 33,627,735
2,220,676 656,123 5,717,558 8,594,355
2,220,676 - 658,123 5,717 556 8,594,355
34,724,838 - 656,123 6,841,128 42 222 080
{18,587,338) (1,461,763) (710,907) (20,780,008)
(10,489,752) (10,489,752
(41,640,874) (1,461,763 - (710,907} {43,813,544)
(41,640,874) {1,461,763) - (710,907} {43,813,544)
(6,916,035) (1,461,763), 656,123 6,130,221 {1.581,454)
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Comparative figures for 30 June 2021
Prior period adjustments

Original Capital Contract Landfifl Restated at 30
balarnce as expenditure  assets and provision June 2021
presented at {a) liabilities (b} {c & d)

Statement of financlal position 30 June 2021
Current assets
Contract assets 220,254 335,465 1,165,719
Total current assets 14,598,944 - 935,465 - 15,634 408
MNon-current assefs
Praperty, plant and equipment 201,754,650 {1,461,763) 7,214,362 207 607 249
Total non-current assets 247,121,930 {1,461,763) - 7,214,362 222 874 529
Total assets 231,720,874 {1,461,763) 935,465 7,214 362 238,408,839
Current liabilities
Contract liabilities 5,778,209 (243,361) 5,534,848
Provisicns 1,811,258 (396,940} 1,414,318
Total current liabitities 10,842,189 . {243,361) (396 940} 10,201,888
Non-current liabikities
Pravisions 564,018 1,481,082 2,045 100
Total non-current liabilities 564,018 - - 1,481,082 2,045,100
Net community assets 220,314 666 {1,461,763) 1,178,826 8,130,220 226,161,950
Community equity
Retained surplus 158,308,015 {1,461,763) 1,178,826 6,130,221 164,155,299
Total community equity 220,314,666 (1,461,763) 1,178,826 6,130,221 226,161,950

(i) The adjustment in Property, plant and equipment of $7,214,362 arising from the landfill provision far the year 30 June 2021 includes the following:

Cost of sewerage upgrade freatment, waste facility and transfer station 5,717,556
Restoration provision to be recognised as part of the asset cost 1,496 808

7,214,362

[T 1A,
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(a)

(b}

Transactions with related parties
Transactions with key management personnel (KMP)

KMP include the Mayor, Councillors, the Council's Chief Executive Officer and Executive Managers. The compensation paid to KMP
comprises:

2022 2021
$ $
Short-tarm employee benefits 1,080,966 1,250,913
Post-employment benefits 115,355 97,782
Long-term henefits 360 2,697
Tearmination benefits 24 073 104,604
Tatal 1,220,754 1,465,896

Detailed remuneration disclosures are provided in the annuat report,

Transactions with other related parties

Other related parties include the close family members of KMP and any entities contralied ar jointly contralled by KMP or their close
family members, Close family members include a spouse, child and dependent of a KMP or their spouse.

Details of transactions between Council and other relaled parties are disclosed below:

Details of Transaction Additionai information 2022 2021
$ $

Service charges and sales to entities controfled by 24(0%0)

KMP 212,151 1,383,443
Sala of goads and services ta related partles 24(b)(ii) - 51,020
Employee expenses for close family members of .

KMP 24(o)(il) 699,323 985,540
Purchase of materials and services from close .

family member and entities controlled by KMP 24(b)(iv) 772,053 326,379
Grants received from related parties 24{h)(v) 513,000 -

(i) The service charges charged to entities controlied by key management personnel were on an arm's length basis in accordance with
the schedufe of fees and charges adopted by Council. Sale of goods were at arm's length and were in the normal terms and conditions
of the Caungil. The total disclosed includes the following:

Sarvice charges and sales to entitles controlled by KMP $ $

Service charges charged to controlled entities 53,532 1,037,927
Sale of goods 158,619 346,516
Total 242,151 1,383,443

(ii) Sales generated from key management personnel, close family member of KMP and jointly confrolled entity of KMP were on arm's
length basis in accordance with Council's standard terms and conditions

{iii) All close family members of key management personnel were employed through an arm's length precess, They are paid in
accordance with the Award for the job they perfarm,

The council emplays 173 {2021: 162) staff of which only 11 (2021: 18) are close family members of key management personinel.

(iv) The Councit purchased material and services from close family member and entities controlled by key management personnel, All
purchases were at arm’s length and were in the normal course of council operations.

(v} During the year, Caunail received grants fram Western Cape Communities Trust, an organisation of communities throughout Cape
York which the Council is represented by the Mayor.

As deseribed in Note 18, there is an ongoing Major Infrastructure Program jointly funded by the Australian and Queensland
Governments ta deliver and upgrade major infrastructure warks. This refates to NPARC Waste Facility and Bamaga Sewerage
upgrade. The funds for this program are helid in trust and the project is managed externally. It is noted that the construction contractor
engaged 1o carry out this praject is an entity controlied by a current KMP of Gouncil, The contract was awarded to the company prier ta
the KMP having any involvement at Council.
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{c}

{d)

{e)

Transactions with related parties {continued)

Qutstanding balances

The folfowing balances are cutstanding at the end of the reperting period in refation to transactions with refaled parties:

Amounts owed by KMP| Amounts owed by close| Amounts owed by
family member of KMP | entities controiled by

30 June 2022 KMP

§ $
Cuzrant - - 528,769
Past due 31-60 days - - 11,362
Past due 61-90 days - - 2,947
More than 80 days overdue - 154 . 239,619
Total Owing - 154 783,697

Amounts owed by KMP| Amounts cwed by clese; Amounts owed by
family member of KMP | entities controlled by

30 June 2021 KNP

$ $ $
Current - - 5,176
Past due 31-60 days 15 - 5,046
Past due 61-30 days - - 5.485
More than 80 days overdue 3,856 203 253,144
Total Owing 3,871 203 268,852

At the end of the reporting period, the Council owed $17,670 (2021 $113,371)to an entity that was controlled by & KMP. There were no
other balances owed to KMP, close family members or entities controlled by KMP,

Folowing receivable amounts from Key Management Personnel {(KMP) and Controlled entities have been provided for doubtful debt
during the year.

Type of relationship | Amounts provided as | Amounts provided as
Name of the related party doubtful deipt 2022 doubtful debt 2021
$ $

Gina Nona KMP 1,80¢ -
Bamaga Kazil TSI Corporation Conteolied entity 57,387 -
NPA Family and Community Services Controlied entity 12,814 -
Ipima Ikaya Aboriginal Gorp RNTBC Confrolied entity 569 -
NPA Justice Services ATSI Corperation Contrelied entity 1,192 -
Thupmul Coffee Canirclied entity 1,080 -

74,851 -

Loans and guarantees to/from related parties

Cauncil does not make loans to or receive loans from refated parties. No guarantees have been provided.

Commitments toffrom other related parties

Counci does not have any commitments to/from related parties.

Transactions with refated parties that have not heen disclosed

The majority of the entities and peopie that are related parties of Counclt live and operate within the Northern Peninsula Area
commurity. Therefors, on a reguiar basis ordinary citizen transactions oceur between Council and its related parties. Seme examples
include:

- Payment of fees and chasges

Council kas not includad these types of transaction in its disclosure as they are made on the same terms and conditions available to
the general public.
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25  Financial instruments and financial risk management

{a} Financial assets and financial liabilities
Narthern Peninsula Aréa Regional Council has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:
- credit risk
- liquidity risk
- market risk

Risk management framework
Northern Peninsula Area Regional Council is responsible for the establishment and oversight of the risk management framework,
tagether with developing and monitoring risk management palicies,

Council's management approves policies for overall risk management, as well as specifically for managing credit, liquidity and market
risk.

The Council's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced, to set appropriate limits and controls
and 1o monitor these risks and adherence against limits. The Gouncil aims to manage valatility to minimise potential adverse effects on
tha financiat perfarmance of the Councit

The Council's audit commitiee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Council's risk management policies and
pracedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Council. The Courncil's

audit committee is assisted in is oversight rofe by intemnal audit. Internal audit undertakes both regular and ad hos reviews of rigk
management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the audit committee.

Northern Peninsula Area Regional Council does not enter into derivatives,

Credlt rlsk

Credit risk is the risk of financial Joss if a counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its confractual obiigations, These
ohligations ardse principally from the Council's investments and receivables,

Exposure to credit risk is managed through regular analysis of eredit counterparly ability to meet payment obligations. The carmrying
amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure,

Investments in financial instruments are required to be made with Queensland Treasury Gorporation (QTC) or similar state /
commenweaith bodies or financial institutions in Austratia, in line with the requirements of the Sfatulory Badies Financial Arrangemenis
Act 1982,

No collateral is held as security relating ta the financial assets heid by Northemn Peninsula Regional Council,

The carrying amounts of financial assets at the end of the reporting period represent the maximum exposure to cradit risk for the
Council,

Cash and cash equivalents

Other financial assets - lease receivables
Finance leases are held with the State of Quaensland, the likelihcod of a credit failure is assessed as remote,
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Financlal instruments and financial risk management (Continued)
Liquldity risk

Liquidity risk Is the risk that the Council will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligatians associated with its financial liahbilities that are
seffled by delivering cash or another financial asset.

The Council's approach to managing fiquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it witl have sufficient liquidity to meet its labilities
when they are due, undar both nermal and stressed condifions, without incurring uhacceptable losses or risking damage to the
Council's reputation.

Exposure to liquidity risk
Council is exposed to liquidity risk through its normmal course of business.

The Councll manages its exposure to liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash deposits and undrawn facilities, both short and long
term, to cater for unexpected volatility in cash flows.

The following table sets out the fiquidity risk in relation to financial liabilifies held by the Council. It represents the remaining contractual
cashflows (principal and interast) of financial liabilities at the end of the reporting pariod, excluding the impact of netling agreemants:

0 to 1 year 1to 5 years Qver 5 years Total Carrying
contractual amount
cash flows

$ $ $ $ $
2022
Trade and ather payables 3,085,719 - - 3,095,719 3,005,719
3,095,718 - - 3,095,718 3,005,719
2021
Trade and other payables 3,252,723 - - 3,252,723 3,262,723
3,262,723 - - 3,252,123 3,252,723

The outflows in the above table are not expected to occur significantly earlier and are not expected 1o be for significantly different
amounts than indicated in the table,
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Financlal instruments and financial risk management {Contihued)

Market risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market indices, such as interest rates, wifl affect the Council's income or the value of its holdings
of financial instruments.

Inferest rate risk
Nosthern Peninsuta Area Regional Council is exposed to interest rate risk through investments with QTC.

Council has access to a mix of variable and fixed rate funding options through QTC so that interest rate risk exposure can be
minimised.

Sensilivity
Sensitivity 1o interest rate movements is shown for variable financial assets and liabilities based on the carrying amount at reperting
date.

The Council does nat account for any fixed-rate financial assets or financial liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss, therefore a
change in interest rates at the reporting date would not affect profit or loss.

The following interest rate sensitivity analysis depicts what effect a reasonably possible change in interest rates (assumed to be 1%)
would have on the profit and equity, based on the carrying values at the end of the raporting pariod. The calculation assumes that the
change in interest rates would be held constant over the period.

Net carrying Effect on Net Result Effect on Equity
amount 1% Increase 1% decrease 1% increase 1% decrease
$ $ $ $ $

2022

Deposits at call 3,469,223 34,692 (34,692) 34,692 (34,692)
Total 3,469,223 34,692 (34,692) 34,652 (34,692)
2021

Deposits at call 3,453,499 34,535 (34,535) 34,535 (34,535)
Total 3,453,499 34,535 (34,535 34,535 (34,535}
Fair vaiue

The fair value of trade and other receivables and payables is assumed to approximate the value of the original transaction, less any
allowance for impairment.

Commitments for expenditure

Contractual commitments

Contractual commitments at end of financial year but not recognised in the
financial statements are as follows:

2022 2021

$ $
Umagico Supermarket management
Within ane year 169,788 160,042
One to five years 355,011 640,000

524,799 800,042
Hunter Premium insurance
Within one year 37,689 26,840

37.5%9 26,840

Computer maintenance within ene year 144,982 144,982
Management and Maintenance of Water Treatment Plant - 426,938
Capital commitments 2,089,386 1,219,981
Total commitments for expenditure 2,806,768 2,648,793

5
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Management Certificate

For the year ended 30 June 2022

These general purpose financial statements have been prepared pursuant to sections 176 and 477 of the Lacal Government Regulation 2012 (the
Regulation) and other prescribad requirements.

In accordance with sectian 212(5) of the Regulation we cerlify that:

(iy the prescribed requirements of the Local Govemment Act 2009 and Local Government Regulation 2072 for the establishment and keeping
of accounts have been complied with in all material respects; and

(i) the general purpose financlal statements, present a true and fair view, in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards, of the Council's
transactions for the financiat year and financial position at the end of the year.

y

Mayor Chief Executive Officer
Rohert Poi Pol Kate Gallaway

Date: _Ll / L .'LC"L Date: if;gﬁ
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Councillors of the Northern Peninsula Area Regional Council

Report on the Audit of the Financial Report
Opinion

| have audited the financial report of the Northern Peninsula Area Regional Council (the
Council).

In my opinion, the financial report:

a) gives a true and fair view of the council’s financial position as at 30 June 2022, and of
its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended

b) complies with the Local Government Act 2009, the Local Government Regulation 2012
and Australian Accounting Standards.

The financial report comprises the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2022, the
Statement of Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of
Cash Flows for the year then ended, notes to the financial statements including significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information, and the certificate given by the Mayor
and Chief Executive Officer.

Basis for opinion

| conducted my audit in accordance with the Auditor-General Auditing Standards, which
incorporate the Australian Auditing Standards. My responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial report section of
my report.

| am independent of the council in accordance with the ethical requirements of the
Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board’s APES 110 Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to my audit of the financial report in
Australia. | have also fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code
and the Auditor-General Auditing Standards.

| believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion.

Other information

Other information comprises financial and non-financial information (other than the audited
financial report) in an entity’s annual report.

At the date of this auditor’s report, the available other information in the Northern Peninsula
Area Regional Council's annual report for the year ended 30 June 2022 was the current year
financial sustainability statement and long-term financial sustainability statement.

The councillors are responsible for the other information.
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My opinion on the financial report does not cover the other information and accordingly | do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. However, as required by the Local
Government Regulation 2012, | have formed a separate opinion on the current year financial
sustainability statement.

In connection with my audit of the financial report, my responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial report and my knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work | have performed, | conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this information, | am required to report that fact. | have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the councillors for the financial report

The councillors are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true
and fair view in accordance with the Local Government Act 2009, the Local Government
Regulation 2012 and Australian Accounting Standards, and for such internal control as the
councillors determine are necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that is
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

The councillors are also responsible for assessing the council’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless it is intended to abolish the council or to otherwise cease
operations of the council.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial report

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a
whole is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the Australian Auditing
Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
this financial report.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, | exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. | also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the council’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the council.
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. Conclude on the appropriateness of the council’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the council’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If | conclude that a material uncertainty exists, |
am required to draw attention in my auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial report or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. | base my
conclusions on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the council to cease to continue as a
going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial report represents the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

| communicate with the council regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that | identify during my audit.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
In accordance with s.40 of the Auditor-General Act 2009, for the year ended 30 June 2022:
a) | received all the information and explanations | required.

b) | consider that, the prescribed requirements in relation to the establishment and
keeping of accounts were complied with in all material respects.

Prescribed requirements scope

The prescribed requirements for the establishment and keeping of accounts are contained in
the Local Government Act 2009, any other Act and the Local Government Regulation 2012.
The applicable requirements include those for keeping financial records that correctly record
and explain the council’s transactions and account balances to enable the preparation of a
true and fair financial report.

\%mlo L 20 May 2024

Sri Narasimhan Queensland Audit Office
as delegate of the Auditor-General Brisbane



Northern Peninsula Area Regional Council
Current-year Financial
For the year ended 30

Measures of Financial Sustainability

How the measure is calculated Actual Ceuncil Target

The Council's performance at 30 June 2022 against key financial ratios and targets:

Operating surplus ratio Net result (excluding capital items) divided by -26% Betwean 0% and
total oparating revenue (exctuding capital items) 10%
Asset sustainability ratio Capital expenditure on the replacement of assets 22% greater than 90%

(renewals) divided by depreciation expense.

Net financial liabilities ratio Total liabilities less current assets divided by -8% not greater than
tatal operating revenue (excluding capital items) 60%

Note 1 - Basis of Preparation

The current year financial sustainabllity statement is a special purpose statement prepared in accordance with the requirements of the
Local Government Regulation 2012 and the Financial Management {Sustainability) Guideline 2013, The amounts used to calculate the
three reported measures are prepared o an accrual basis and are drawn from the Council's audited generat purpose financial statements
for the year ended 30 June 2022,

Certificate of Accuracy
For the year ended 30 June 2022

This current-year financial sustainabiity statement has been prepared pursuant to Section 178 of the Local Governmen! Regulation 2012
(the regulation).

In accordance with Section 212(5) of the Regutation we ceriify that this current-year financial sustainability statement has been accurately
calculated,

Mayor Chief Executiva Officer
Robatt Pol Pot Kate GaHaway

Date; ’7 .f____s_:_lﬂ Date:__fl__l__j__’_l?/_‘,‘l
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Councillors of the Northern Peninsula Area Regional Council

Report on the Current-Year Financial Sustainability Statement

Opinion

| have audited the accompanying current year financial sustainability statement of the
Northern Peninsula Area Regional Council for the year ended 30 June 2022, comprising the

statement, explanatory notes, and the certificate of accuracy given by the Mayor and the
Chief Executive Officer.

In accordance with s.212 of the Local Government Regulation 2012, in my opinion, in all
material respects, the current year financial sustainability statement of the Northern
Peninsula Area Regional Council for the year ended 30 June 2022 has been accurately
calculated.

Basis of opinion

| conducted my audit in accordance with the Auditor-General Auditing Standards, which
incorporate the Australian Auditing Standards. My responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the current year financial
sustainability statement section of my report.

| am independent of the council in accordance with the ethical requirements of the
Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board APES 110 Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to my audit of the statement in
Australia. | have also fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code
and the Auditor-General Auditing Standards.

| believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion.

Emphasis of matter — basis of accounting

| draw attention to Note 1 which describes the basis of accounting. The current year financial
sustainability statement has been prepared in accordance with the Financial Management
(Sustainability) Guideline 2013 for the purpose of fulfilling the council’s reporting
responsibilities under the Local Government Regulation 2012. As a result, the statement
may not be suitable for another purpose. My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Other Information

Other information comprises financial and non-financial information (other than the audited
financial report) in an entity’s annual report.

At the date of this auditor’s report, the available other information in the Northern Peninsula
Area Regional Council’'s annual report for the year ended 30 June 2022 was the general
purpose financial statements and long-term financial sustainability statement.

The councillors are responsible for the other information.

My opinion on the current year financial sustainability statement does not cover the other
information and accordingly | do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
However, as required by the Local Government Regulation 2012, | have formed a separate
opinion on the general purpose financial report.
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In connection with my audit of the financial report, my responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial report and my knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work | have performed, | conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this information, | am required to report that fact. | have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the councillors for the current year financial sustainability
statement

The councillors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the current year
financial sustainability statement in accordance with the Local Government Regulation 2012.
The councillors responsibility also includes such internal control as the councillors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation and fair presentation of the statement that is
accurately calculated and is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the current year financial sustainability
statement

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the current year financial
sustainability statement as a whole is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
the Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of this statement.

My responsibility does not extend to forming an opinion on the appropriateness or relevance
of the reported ratios, nor on the council’s future sustainability.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, | exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. | also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the statement, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the council’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of material accounting policy information used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the council.

J Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the statement, including the
disclosures, and whether the statement represents the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.



® Queensland
® ® Audit Office

Better public services
| communicate with the council regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and

timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that | identify during my audit.

\%ML) o 20 May 2024

Sri Narasimhan Queensland Audit Office
as delegate of the Auditor-General Brisbane
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